
 

 

 

 
Meeting 
 

Audit and Governance Committee 
 

Date and Time 
 

Thursday, 10th November, 2022 at 6.30 pm. 

Venue 
 

Walton Suite, Winchester Guildhall 

Note: This meeting is being held in person at the location specified above and the 
following arrangements apply. Members of the public should note that a live audio 
feed of the meeting will be available from the councils website 
(www.winchester.gov.uk ) and the video recording will be publicly available on the 
council’s YouTube channel shortly after the meeting.  
 
For members of the public and “visiting councillors” who are unable to utilise this 
facility a limited number of seats will be made available at the above named location 
however attendance must be notified to the council at least 3 clear working days 
before the meeting.  Please note that priority will be given to those wishing to attend 
and address the meeting over those wishing to attend and observe. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

PROCEDURAL ITEMS  

1.   Apologies  
 To record the names of apologies given. 

 

2.   Disclosure of Interests  
 To receive any disclosure of interests from Members and Officers in 

matters to be discussed. 
Note: Councillors are reminded of their obligations to declare disclosable 
pecuniary interests, personal and/or prejudicial interests in accordance 
with legislation and the Council’s Code of Conduct. 

 

3.   Chairperson's announcements  
 

BUSINESS ITEMS  

4.   To note the Audit & Governance work programme 2022/23 (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

5.   Minutes of the previous meetings held on 29 June and 21 July 2022 
(Pages 7 - 18) 
 

Public Document Pack



6.   Public Participation  
  

– To receive and note questions asked and statements made from members 
of the public on matters which fall within the remit of the Committee..  
  
NB members of the public are required to register with Democratic Services 
three clear working days before the meeting (see below for further details). 
 

 Members of the public and visiting councillors may speak at this Committee, 
provided they have registered to speak three working days in advance.  
Please contact Democratic Services by 5pm on Friday 4 November 2022 
via democracy@winchester.gov.uk or (01962) 848 264 to register to speak 
and for further details. 

 
 

7.   Treasury management mid-year monitoring 22/23 (AG094) (Pages 19 - 
34) 
 

8.   Final report and pay policy statement 23/24 (AG092) (Pages 35 - 54) 
 

9.   Update on employee attitude survey and related matters (AG085) (Pages 
55 - 72) 
 

10.   Risk Management Strategy - Review (AG087) (Pages 73 - 80) 
 

11.   Quarter 1 and Quarter 2 Governance Monitoring (AG086) (Pages 81 - 
118) 
 

12.   Monitoring Officer’s annual report 2021/22 (AG093) (Pages 119 - 126) 
 

 
Laura Taylor 

Chief Executive 
 
 

 

All of the Council’s publicly available agendas, reports and minutes are available 
to view and download from the Council’s Website and are also open to 
inspection at the offices of the council.  As part of our drive to minimise our use 
of paper we do not provide paper copies of the full agenda pack at meetings. 
We do however, provide a number of copies of the agenda front sheet at the 
meeting which contains the QR Code opposite. Scanning this code enables 
members of the public to easily access all of the meeting papers on their own 
electronic device. Please hold your device’s camera or QR code App over the 
QR Code so that it's clearly visible within your screen and you will be redirected 

to the agenda pack. 

 

 
2 November 2022 
 

mailto:democracy@winchester.gov.uk
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


Agenda Contact: Nancy Graham, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01962 848 235  email: ngraham@winchester.gov.uk 
 
*With the exception of exempt items, Agenda, reports and previous minutes are 
available on the Council’s Website www.winchester.gov.uk 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Chairperson: 

Cutler (Liberal Democrats)                     

Vice-Chairperson: 

Bronk (Liberal Democrats) 

  

 
Conservatives Liberal Democrats 

Bolton 

Godfrey 

Miller 

 

Achwal 

Craske 

Laming 

 

Deputy Members 
 

Cunningham and Lumby Batho and Radcliffe 

 
 
 
Quorum = 3 members 
 
 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
Audit and Governance Committee  – Included within the Council’s Constitution (Part 
2, Article 9)  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
A public question and comment session is available at 6.30pm for a 15 minute 
period.  There are few limitations on the questions you can ask.  These relate to 
current applications, personal cases and confidential matters.  Please contact 
Democratic Services on 01962 848 264 in advance of the meeting for further details.  
If there are no members of the public present at 6.30pm who wish to ask questions 
or make statements, then the meeting will commence. 
 
NB members of the public are required to register with Democratic Services three 
clear working days before the meeting (see below for further details). 
 
FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
 
This meeting will be recorded and broadcast live on the Council’s website. The 
meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Access to Information Procedure Rules within the Council's 

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/


Constitution for further information, which is available to view on the Council’s 
website. 
 
DISABLED ACCESS: 
 
Disabled access is normally available, but please phone Democratic Services on 
01962 848 264 or email democracy@winchester.gov.uk to ensure that the necessary 
arrangements are in place. 
 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4


WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL – AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME – UPCOMING ITEMS 
 

Wednesday, 02 November 2022 

 

 Item Lead Officer Date of Meeting 

1  Monitoring Officer’s annual report Lisa Kirkman  10 Nov 2022  

2  Update on employee attitude survey and related matters Robert O'Reilly  10 Nov 2022  

3  Risk Management Strategy - Review Richard Botham  10 Nov 2022  

4  Governance quarterly update 22/23 – Q1 & Q2 Simon Howson  10 Nov 2022  

5  Treasury management mid-year monitoring 22/23 Liz Keys  10 Nov 2022  

6  Final report and pay policy statement 23/24 Robert O'Reilly  10 Nov 2022  

 

7  Audit results report for the year ending 21/22 Liz Keys  Dec 2022 (date 
tbc) 

8  Annual financial report 21/22 Liz Keys  Dec 2022 (date 
tbc)  

 

9  Risk Management Policy 23/24 Amy Tranah  2 Mar 2023  

10  Local Code of Corporate Governance Strategic Director: 
Resources  

2 Mar 2023  

11  Governance quarterly update 22/23 – Q3 Simon Howson  2 Mar 2023  

12  Planning for and audit of the 22/23 accounts Liz Keys  2 Mar 2023  

13  Internal audit charter 23/24 Liz Keys  2 Mar 2023  

14  Internal audit plan 23/24 – 24/25 Liz Keys  2 Mar 2023  

15  Auditors annual report 21/22 Liz Keys  2 Mar 2023  

 

16  Constitution review (date tbc) Lisa Kirkman    

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 29 June 2022 
Attendance: 
 

Councillors 
Cutler (Chairperson) 

 
Achwal 
Bolton 
Bronk 
 

Craske 
Miller 
 

 
Apologies for Absence:  
 
Councillors Godfrey and Laming 
 
Deputy Members: 
 
Councillor Batho and Cunningham 
 
Members in attendance who spoke at the meeting 
 
Councillor(s) Power 
 
Other members in attendance: 
 
Councillor(s) Clear and Ferguson 
 
 
Audio and video recording of this meeting 
 
 

1.    DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  
 

Councillor Craske declared a personal (but not prejudicial) interest with regards 
to his employment with KPMG, who provided audit services to the Council. 

 
2.    APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRPERSON FOR THE 2022/23 MUNICIPAL 

YEAR  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That Councillor Bronk be appointed as vice-chairperson for the 
2022/23 municipal year. 

 
3.    CHAIRPERSON'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
There were no announcements made. 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=351&MId=4107&Ver=4


 
 

 
 

4.    MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 8 MARCH 2022  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 8 March 2022 be 
approved and adopted. 

 
5.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 
There no questions asked or comments made. 
 

6.    AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 22/23  
 (AG078) 

 
The Strategic Director and Monitoring Officer stated that the requirement for this 
additional meeting had highlighted an additional meeting would be prudent  to be 
scheduled in June in future years to consider governance matters as governance 
workloads had increased in future years, as opposed to the remit of the 
committee with finance.  The July meeting would then focus on financial issues. 
 
In response to questions, the Strategic Director and Monitoring Officer advised 
that due to staffing changes and other work priorities it would not be possible to 
schedule the Constitution review report for the September meeting.  However, 
an update on the latest position may be possible as part of the Monitoring 
Officer’s annual report.  In addition to this, a discussion paper on the council’s 
Corporate Risks and any emerging risks that may impact the council in the future 
could be considered.    

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the Audit and Governance Committee Work Programme for 

2022/23 be approved. 
 

7.    WORKFORCE REPORT 21/22  
 (AG079) 

 
The Service Lead – Human Resources introduced the report and responded to 
members’ questions thereon.   
 
Councillor Power drew members’ attention to the age profile of the council as 
outlined in Table 6 of the report appendix and requested a view about whether 
this should be added to the council’s risk profile.  Following discussion, it was 
agreed that further investigation was required as to how best it could be added to 
the risk register. 
 
Further to a request, the Service Lead advised that he would give further 
consideration to providing additional, appropriate benchmarking data in future 
committee reports. 
 
Following discussions, it was agreed that a report be submitted to the September 
meeting on the results from the current employee attitude survey and that this 

Page 8



 
 

 
 

report include details of the current employment package (in terms of annual 
leave entitlement and other benefits etc) available to employees. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the report be noted. 
 

2. That in noting the age profile of the council’s staff and having 
regard to the current national employment situation, the risks to the 
council be investigated further and added to the risk register. 
 

3. That an update report be submitted to the meeting of the 
committee on 27 September 2022 regarding the current staff attitude 
survey and related matters.  

 
8.    Q4 GOVERNANCE MONITORING  

(AG077)  
 
The Senior Policy and Programme Manager introduced the report and, together 
with the Strategic Director and Monitoring Officer, responded to members’ 
questions thereon.   
 
Members noted that additional narratives had been provided on the overdue 
internal audit actions as well as a more detailed update on three specific internal 
audit reviews relating to health and safety, disabled facilities grants and 
information governance - records retention. 
 
The Monitoring Officer acknowledged members’ comments regarding the length 
of time taken to deal with some code of conduct complaints and outlined the 
measures being taken to address this and also to provide potential complainants 
with more information regarding the process at the outset.  She advised that the 
council’s members’ code of conduct training had been extended to include 
information regarding what should be expected by a councillor subject of a 
complaint having been made. 

 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the content of the report, the progress against the internal audit 
management actions and the issues raised above be noted. 

 
9.    BACKGROUND TO NOTICE OF MOTION ON OPEN & TRANSPARENCY OF 

DECISION MAKING  
(AG084)  
 
Councillor Cutler outlined the background to the report following the Notice of 
Motion submitted to Council on 12 January 2022.  The Strategic Director and 
Monitoring Officer introduced the report and drew Members’ attention to 
Appendix 1, which contained advice on the Notice of Motion prepared by Mark 
Heath working for Veale Wasbrough Vizards.  The note had numbered each 
section of the Notice of Motion as set out below: 

Page 9



 
 

 
 

 
This Council commits to clearly demonstrate that it is open and 
transparent in all its decision-making, specifically by: 

o 1. Properly consulting all councillors and the public before making 
any significant decisions about council projects or other major 
financial transactions. 

o 2. Within 12 months of a decision being made, publishing without 
restriction all papers used to support decisions on projects and 
other major financial transactions that were marked as exempt 
from publication at the time of the decision unless Full Council 
decides that these papers should remain exempt for a further 12 
months. 

o 3. Recording the discussions, submissions and decisions at all 
meetings attended by any person outside Winchester City Council 
and, where those meetings relate to any decision made afterwards, 
for these records to be available to all councillors within 2 weeks 
and to the public within 12 months of the meeting unless Full 
Council decides that these papers should remain exempt for a 
further 12 months. 

o 4. Stopping the use of Non-Disclosure Agreements that councillors 
have been required to sign before being able to see some Council 
or Committee papers and to cancel any indemnity clauses in such 
Non-Disclosure Agreements previously signed by serving 
Councillors.” 

The Committee discussed each of the four points in turn, as summarised below. 
 
Bullet point 1 
 
The Committee discussed the report’s proposed response as set out in 
paragraph 7.41 of the appendix. There was some discussion on the background 
to the notice of motion and a perception amongst some members and the public 
that proper consultation had not been undertaken.  However, the Committee 
agreed with the report’s conclusions that requirements placed on the council 
under the current constitution were adequate to demonstrate openness and 
transparency in decision-making. 
 
Bullet Point 2 

 
The Committee noted that the proposed process for the review of exempt reports 
was set out in appendix 1 to the report.  It was agreed that the suggested 
process be agreed, with the additional recommendation that the Committee 
review its operation in 12 months’ time. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 
 

 
 

Bullet point 3 
 
The Committee noted that the conclusion of the report giving advice on the 
notice of motion (appendix 1 to the report, paragraph 9) was that this point failed 
on its merits and was also in breach of the fiduciary duty.  It was therefore 
agreed that no further action be taken. 

 
Bullet point 4 
 
The Monitoring Officer drew members’ attention to her review and proposed 
improvements to the use of non disclosure agreements (NDAs) as contained as 
appendix 3 to the report and responded to members’ questions thereon.  
 
The Monitoring Officer also specifically sought the agreement of the Audit and 
Governance Committee to the release of the NDA in respect of the July 2021 
Central Winchester Regeneration (CWR) Cabinet report as had been agreed for 
the December CWR report in its entirety.  
 
Furthermore that the Monitoring Officer sought the agreement of the committee 
to the release of the indemnity point of any existing NDA for reasons outlined in 
the report. 
 
It was agreed that the proposed response as contained as appendix 3 to the 
report be agreed. 

 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
1.      That the following responses be confirmed in response to the motion: 

 
A) Bullet Point 1 

“This Council commits to clearly demonstrate that it is open and 
transparent in all its decision-making, specifically by: 

Committing to act in accordance with the Council's Constitution (Article 
13.02) which states that decisions of the Council will be made in 
accordance with these principles: 

a) The actions must be proportionate to the desired outcome 

b) After due consultation and the taking of professional advice from 
officers 

c) With a respect for human rights 

d) With a presumption in favour of openness 

e) Natural justice 

f) With a clarity of aims and design options 

g) Giving reasons for the decision and the proper recording of 
those reasons" 

Page 11



 
 

 
 

 

B) Bullet Point 2 

 
That the proposed procedure for review of exempt reports be agreed, as 
contained within Appendix 2 of the report with the requirement that the 
operation of the procedure be reviewed by the Audit and Governance 
Committee after a period of 12 months. 
 
C) Bullet Point 3 

That no further action be taken with respect to this point. 
 
 
D) Bullet Point 4 

 
That it be agreed that non-disclosure agreements be used only in 
exceptional circumstances and that the proposed safeguards to their use 
together with the improvements to the way exempt reports were displayed 
be agreed, as set out in appendix 3 to the report. 
 
 

2.      That the committee support the recommendation of the Monitoring Officer 
regarding release of the non-disclosure agreement (NDA) in respect of the July 
2021 Central Winchester Regeneration (CWR) Cabinet report as had been 
agreed for the December CWR report, in addition to the release of the indemnity 
element of any other existing NDA. 
 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and concluded at 9.20 pm 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 12



 
 

 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 21 July 2022 
Attendance: 
 

Councillors 
Cutler (Chairperson) 

 
Bolton 
Bronk 
Craske 
 

Godfrey 
Laming 
Miller 
 

 
Apologies for Absence:  
 
Councillors Achwal 
 
Deputy Members: 
 
Councillor Batho 
 
Other members in attendance: 
 
Councillor(s) Clear 
 
 
Audio and video recording of this meeting  
 

 
1.    APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies were noted as set out above. 
 

2.    DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  
 
With regard to report AG072, Councillor Craske declared a personal and 
prejudicial interest due to his employment with KPMG, who provided audit 
services to the Council.  He left the room during consideration of this item and 
took no part in the decision or debate.   In respect of all other items, he 
declared a personal (but not prejudicial) interest with regards to his 
employment with KPMG and remained in the room. 

 
3.    CHAIRPERSON'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
Councillor Cutler announced that the minutes of the previous additional meeting 
of the Committee held on 29 June 2022 would be submitted for approval to the 
September meeting.  In response to questions, the Strategic Director and 
Section 151 officer explained that there had been unavoidable delays in the 
clearance for publication of the minutes due to the unanticipated absence of a 
lead officer. 
 

Page 13

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=351&MId=2974&Ver=4


 
 

 
 

4.    AUDIT & GOVERNANCE WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23  
 
The Committee discussed the proposed content of the work programme and a 
number of additional suggestions for reports were put forward.  Councillor Cutler 
emphasised the remit of the committee to focus on process rather than on policy 
matters. 
 
Councillor Cutler proposed that an additional item be added to the September 
meeting to build on discussions held at the recent Risk Management workshop, 
with particular regard to which Committee should be responsible to examine risk 
in detail. This was agreed. 
 
It was noted that an item on examining the asset management strategy of the 
council had been suggested previously and the Strategic Director and Section 
151 officer had agreed to arrange an informal meeting with the appropriate 
councillors to discuss.  The Strategic Director confirmed that this would take 
place shortly and a report would be brought to the September meeting of the 
Committee.  Councillor Cutler emphasised that this should focus on process 
matters rather than policy considerations in order to fall within the remit of the 
Committee. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
 That the contents of the work programme for the remainder of 
2022/23 be noted and the following additional items be agreed for the 27 
September 2022 meeting: 
 
a) Risk Management Strategy - Review 
b) Asset Management Strategy - Governance 

 
5.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 
There were no questions asked or comments made. 
 

6.    EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 21/22  
(AG083)  
 
Councillor Power (Cabinet Member for Finance and Value) expressed concern 
about the delays in the plan timetable.  In response, Kevin Suter (Ernest Young) 
explained the reasons for the delays, emphasising it was a national issue and 
there was a shortage of staff, and the aim was to bring the programme 
incrementally forwards. 
 
Mr Suter responded to Members’ questions on the report.  He confirmed that he 
would submit a report to the September Committee meeting on the outcome of 
the Value for Money (VFM) planning.   
 
Mr Suter confirmed that EY was requesting that the Committee confirm its 
understanding of, and agreement to, the materiality and reporting levels set out 
in its report.  It was agreed this be included as an additional recommendation 
and agreed as set out below 

Page 14



 
 

 
 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the external auditor’s Audit Strategy for 2021/22 be noted. 
 

2. That the indicative 2021/22 annual audit fee be approved, 
subject to PSAA approval of the proposed rebasing increase included 
within. 
 

3. Confirms its understanding of, and agreement to, the 
materiality and reporting levels as set out in the Audit Planning Report. 
 

 
7.    TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN 21/22  

(AG081)  
 
Gemma Farley (Hampshire County Council Investments and Borrowing Team) 
introduced the report and advised of a minor correction to Table 4 at paragraph 
19.2 to include the total investment movement figure of £19.83m. 
 
Members had no questions regarding the content of the report. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
 That the Annual Treasury Outturn report 2021/22 be noted. 

 
8.    DRAFT ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 21/22  

(AG082)  
 
The Corporate Head of Finance introduced the report, advising that the 
Committee was not being asked to approve the report at this stage as it would 
be submitted for approval once it had been audited.   
 
The Corporate Head of Finance and the Strategic Director & Section 151 Officer 
responded to questions on the report which included further clarification 
regarding the pension scheme liability.  It was suggested that a briefing note be 
included for members on this point when considering the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the council’s draft Statement of Accounts for 2021/22 
be noted. 

 
9.    AUDITOR'S ANNUAL REPORT 21/22  

(AG080)  
 
Anthony Harvey (Southern Internal Audit Partnership) introduced the report and 
responded to Members’ questions thereon. 
 

Page 15



 
 

 
 

Mr Harvey advised that the decision to defer the audit of six service areas as 
detailed in section 5 of the report had been reported to the March Committee 
and was due to the ongoing pressures on officers due to the pandemic.  He 
believed this was a reasonable approach given the general stability of the 
council and the three year internal audit cycle.  Mr Harvey also confirmed that he 
believed he had sufficient resources available to undertake the internal audit 
work. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Report and Opinion for 
2021/22 be noted, as attached as appendix 1 to the report. 

 
10.    CERTIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND RETURNS ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 

(AG072)  
 
Councillor Craske left the room during consideration of this item and took no part 
in the debate or decision thereon. 
 
The Service Lead – Revenues and Benefits introduced the report.   
 
On behalf of the Committee, Councillor Cutler and Councillor Power (Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Value) congratulated the Revenues and Benefits Team 
for this work with particular regard to the pressures faced by the team during the 
recent pandemic. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
 That the Certification of Claims and Returns Annual Report for 
2020/21 be noted, as attached as appendix 1 to the report. 

 
 

11.    ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  
(AG076)  
 
The Strategic Director & Section 151 Officer introduced the report on behalf of 
the Strategic Director & Monitoring Officer and drew members’ attention to the 
three issues that had been identified as requiring further consideration and 
action, as listed in paragraph 11.14 of the report.  The Strategic Director and the 
Senior Policy and Programme Manager responded to members’ questions. 
 
One Member drew attention to inconsistencies between some of the wording 
used in the AGS and that included in the Annual Financial Report, particularly 
relating to references to the Committee.  It was agreed that further checks be 
undertaken to ensure the two documents were reconciled. 
 
The importance of ensuring there was no further slippage to deferred items in 
the internal audit programme was emphasised and the requirement to carefully 
monitor progress in the quarterly update reports was highlighted.  It was agreed 
that a further recommendation be added to reflect this point. 
 

Page 16



 
 

 
 

In response to particular questions regarding the Programme and Project 
Management, the Strategic Director confirmed this had been prepared in draft 
form and further commentary could be provided in the Q1 report to the 
September meeting. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. That, subject to recommendation 3, the Annual Governance 
Statement for 2021/22 be approved (as set out in appendix 1 of the 
report) for inclusion in the Draft Annual Financial Report 2021/22 which is 
included as AG082 above. 

 
2. That the issues arising and proposed actions identified in 

appendix 1 of the report be noted and the progress against the actions be 
brought back to the committee as an appendix to the quarterly 
governance monitoring report. 
 

3. That the Strategic Director be authorised to make minor 
drafting changes to the statement to ensure consistency between the 
AGS and the Annual Financial Report and to add a statement to the “Role 
of Internal Audit” wording in section 7.8 to stress the importance that 
approved slippage in the 2021/22 programme was fully addressed in 
2022/23. 

 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and concluded at 8.10 pm 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

AG094 
AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

REPORT TITLE: TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID YEAR MONITORING REPORT 
2022/23 
 
10 NOVEMBER 2022 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER:  CLLR POWER – CABINET MEMBER FOR 
FINANCE AND VALUE  

Contact Officer:  Richard Botham    Tel No: 01962 848421 Email 
rbotham@winchester.gov.uk  

WARD(S):  ALL WARDS 
 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

This report provides detail of the performance of the treasury management function. 
This includes the effects of the decisions taken in the past six months, and 
confirmation that there were no instances of non-compliance with the Council’s 
Treasury Management Policy Statement and Treasury Management Practices, for 
2022/23 to date. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That the Treasury Management Mid-Year Monitoring Report 2022/23 be 

noted. 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



  AG094 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME  

1.1 Treasury management is an integral part of helping to deliver the Council 
Strategy and all of its outcomes. Of key importance is ensuring the security 
and sufficient liquidity of the council’s cash and investment balances whilst, 
where possible, optimising the yield from those investments. The income from 
investments is available to be used by the council in achieving its objectives.  

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 Effective treasury management ensures both the financial security and 
liquidity of the council.  

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS  

3.1 The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement follows the latest 
codes of practice and the DLUHC and CIPFA guidance.   

3.2 With effect from September 2014 Hampshire County Council (HCC) and 
Winchester City Council (WCC) established arrangements for the joint 
discharge of functions under Section (101)(1) and (5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and Section 9EA and 9EB Local Government Act 2000.  
Under this arrangement, HCC’s Investments and Borrowing Team provide a 
Treasury Service which includes the management of WCC’s cash balances 
and investment of surplus cash or sourcing of short-term borrowing in 
accordance with the agreed Treasury Management Strategy Statement.  

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS  

4.1 HCC’s Investments and Borrowing Team carry out the day-to-day 
management of the council’s cash balances and investments. The council’s 
in-house finance team undertake the accounting and retain responsibility for 
long-term borrowing decisions.  

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS  

5.1 None  

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 This report has been produced in consultation with HCC’s Investments & 
Borrowing team. 

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 Following the council’s declaration of a Climate Emergency in June 2019 and 
in line with the ethical stances in its investment policy, the council has no 
direct or indirect equity investments in companies directly involved in the fossil 
fuel industry.  

Page 20



  AG094 
 

 

 

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT  

8.1 There are no actions which arise directly from this report. 

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

9.1 None required 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT  

Risk Mitigation Opportunities 

Returns 
from 
investments  
are too low 

A diversified strategy that attempts 
to manage the balance between 
liquidity risk, credit risk and yield 
within the council’s risk appetite. 

Returns above budgeted levels. 

A 
counterparty 
fails 

A diversified strategy that has 
relatively low levels of counter-
party risk. 

 

Cash is not 
available 

A balanced portfolio of liquid and 
long-term funds are held to ensure 
cash is available to utilise. The 
council also mitigates this risk 
through cashflow forecasting. 

More accurate and immediate 
cashflow forecasting can help 
improve the return on 
investments through more active 
treasury management activity. 

 
11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

12 Introduction  

12.1 The council has adopted the key recommendations of the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public 
Services: Code of Practice (the CIPFA Code), last updated in 2021.  The 
CIPFA Code requires the council to approve a treasury management strategy 
before the start of the year, a mid-year report, and annual treasury outturn 
report.  The purpose of this report is therefore to meet this obligation by 
providing an update on the performance of the treasury management function 
at the mid-year point. 

13 Summary  

13.1 The report fulfils the council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 
2003 to have regard to the CIPFA Code and provides an update on the 
performance of the treasury management function during 2022/23. 

13.2 The council’s treasury management strategy was most recently updated and 
approved at a meeting of Full Council in February 2022. The council has 
borrowed and invested sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial 
risks including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing 
interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring and control of risk are 
therefore central to the council’s treasury management strategy. 

Page 21



  AG094 
 

 

 

13.3 Treasury management in the context of this report is defined as: “the 
management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks.”  

13.4 This report sets out the performance of the treasury management function 
from the beginning of April to the end of September 2022, to include the 
effects of the decisions taken and the transactions executed in the past year.  

13.5 Hampshire County Council’s Investments & Borrowing Team has been 
contracted to manage the council’s treasury management balances since 
September 2014 but overall responsibility for treasury management remains 
with Winchester City Council.  No treasury management activity is without risk 
and as such the effective identification and management of risk are integral to 
the council’s treasury management objectives.    

13.6 All treasury activity has complied with the council’s Treasury Management 
Strategy and Investment Strategy for 2022/23, and all relevant statute, 
guidance and accounting standards.  In addition, support in undertaking 
treasury management activities has been provided by the council’s treasury 
advisers, Arlingclose.   

13.7 The Prudential Code includes a requirement for local authorities to produce a 
Capital Strategy, a summary document approved by Full Council covering 
capital expenditure and financing, treasury management and non-treasury 
investments. The latest iteration of the council’s Capital and Investment 
Strategy, complying with CIPFA’s requirement, was approved by Full Council 
in February 2022. 

14 External Context  

14.1 The following sections outline the key economic themes in the UK against 
which investment and borrowing decisions have been made so far in 
2022/23.  

Economic commentary 

14.2 The ongoing conflict in Ukraine has continued to put pressure on global 
inflation and the economic outlook for UK and world growth remains weak. 

14.3 The economic backdrop during the April to September period continued to be 
characterised by high oil, gas and commodity prices, ongoing high inflation 
and its impact on consumers’ cost of living, no imminent end in sight to the 
Russia-Ukraine hostilities and its associated impact on the supply chain, and 
China’s zero-Covid policy. 

14.4 UK inflation remained extremely high. Annual headline CPI hit 10.1% in July, 
the highest rate for 40 years, before falling modestly to 9.9% in August. RPI 
registered 12.3% in both July and August. The energy regulator, Ofgem, 

Page 22



  AG094 
 

 

 

increased the energy price cap by 54% in April, while a further increase in the 
cap from October, which would have seen households with average energy 
consumption pay over £3,500 per annum, was dampened by the UK 
government stepping in to provide support to limit bills to £2,500. 

14.5 The Bank of England increased the official Bank Rate to 2.25% over the 
period. From 0.75% in March, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) pushed 
through rises of 0.25% in each of the following two MPC meetings, before 
hiking by 0.50% in August and again in September. August’s rise was voted 
by a majority of 8-1, with one MPC member preferring a more modest rise of 
0.25%. the September vote was 5-4, with five votes for an 0.5% increase, 
three for an 0.75% increase and one for an 0.25% increase. The Committee 
noted that domestic inflationary pressures are expected to remain strong and 
so given ongoing strong rhetoric around tackling inflation further Bank Rate 
rises should be expected. 

14.6 Bank of England policymakers noted that any resulting inflationary impact of 
increased demand would be met with monetary tightening, raising the 
prospect of much higher Bank Rate and consequential negative impacts on 
the housing market.   

Financial markets 

14.7 Uncertainty remained in control of financial market sentiment and bond yields 
remained volatile, continuing their general upward trend as concern over 
higher inflation and higher interest rates continued to dominate. Towards the 
end of September, volatility in financial markets was significantly exacerbated 
by the UK government’s fiscal plans, leading to an acceleration in the rate of 
the rise in gilt yields and decline in the value of sterling. 

14.8 Due to pressure on private sector pension funds, the Bank of England 
announced a direct intervention in the gilt market to increase liquidity and 
reduce yields. 

Credit review 

14.9 Having completed its full review of its credit advice on unsecured deposits at 
UK and non-UK banks, in May Arlingclose extended the maximum duration 
limit for five UK banks, four Canadian banks and four German banks to six 
months. The maximum duration for unsecured deposits with other UK and 
non-UK banks on Arlingclose’s recommended list is 100 days. These 
recommendations were unchanged at the end of the period. 

14.10 Credit default swaps are used as an indicator of credit risk, where higher 
premiums indicate higher perceived risks. Arlingclose continued to monitor 
and assess credit default swap levels for signs of credit stress but made no 
changes to the counterparty list or recommended durations. Nevertheless, 
increased market volatility is expected to remain a feature, at least in the near 
term and, as ever, the institutions and durations on the Authority’s 
counterparty list recommended by Arlingclose remains under constant review. 

Page 23



  AG094 
 

 

 

15 Local Context  

15.1 At 31 March 2022 the council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes 
was £258.8m as measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). The 
Council held £47.6m of investments (principal invested plus gains on 
investments with a variable net asset value) and £166.7m of external 
borrowing. These factors are summarised in Table 1.  

Table 1: Balance sheet summary 31/03/22 
Balance  

£m 

General Fund CFR (72.8) 

Housing Revenue Account CFR (186.0) 

Borrowing CFR (258.8) 

  

External borrowing (166.7) 

Internal borrowing (92.1) 

Total funding of the CFR (258.8) 

  

Total investments 47.6 

 

15.2 The council’s strategy is to maintain borrowing and investments below their 
underlying levels, referred to as internal borrowing, to reduce risk and keep 
interest costs low.  The treasury management position as at 30 September 
2022 and the movement since 31 March 2022 are shown in Table 2.  

Table 2: Treasury 
management summary  

31/03/22 
Balance 

£m 

Movement 
  

£m  

30/09/22 
Balance 

£m 

30/09/22 
Rate 

% 

Long-term borrowing  (161.7) 0.0 (161.7) 3.2 

Short-term borrowing (5.0) 0.0 (5.0) 2.6 

Total borrowing  (166.7) 0.0 (166.7) 3.2 

Long-term investments  5.0 0.0 5.0 3.7 

Short-term investments  21.1 8.4 29.5 1.8 

Cash and cash equivalents  21.5 (3.1) 18.4 2.0 

Total investments  47.6 5.3 52.9 2.1 

Net borrowing  (119.1) 5.3 (113.8)  

Note: the figures in Table 2 at 31 March 2022 are from the balance sheet in the council’s 
statement of accounts 

Page 24



  AG094 
 

 

 

15.3 The reduction in net borrowing of £5.3m shown in Table 2 reflects an increase 
in total investments of £5.3m and there has been no change to the borrowing 
position.  Further details are provided in the Borrowing Activity and Treasury 
Investments Activity sections of this report.  

16 Borrowing Update 

16.1 The council has no plans to borrow to invest primarily for commercial return 
and so is unaffected by the changes to the Prudential Code. The council is not 
planning to purchase any investment assets primarily for yield, so is able to 
retain full access to the PWLB. 
 

16.2 Further, the council has invested in a pooled property fund as part of its 
Treasury Management strategy.  This is not a policy to primarily generate 
yield but a part of the implementation of the wider Treasury Management 
strategy to invest the council’s surplus cash and reserves ensuring it is 
investing its funds prudently, having regard to the security and liquidity of its 
treasury investments before seeking the optimum rate of return, or yield.  By 
investing a diversified portfolio in respect of yield this meets the council’s aim 
of protecting reserves from high inflation. 

 
16.3 The council is a net borrower and as stated in the Treasury Management 

Strategy 2022/23, the council expects a positive liability benchmark across the 
forecast period, which generally means an authority is required to take 
external borrowing to fund the gap between its resources and the CFR.  
Although the council currently has taken external borrowing, this is not 
predicted to be sufficient to meet the CFR and, depending on the internal 
borrowing position, further borrowing will be considered by the Section 151 
Officer if required.   
 

16.4 The Section 151 Officer will review the current pooled fund investment prior to 
making any external borrowing decisions. 
. 

17 Borrowing Activity  

17.1 At 30 September 2022 the council held £166.7m of loans, the vast majority of 
which (£156.7m) relates to the financing settlement of the HRA in 2012.  The 
mid-year treasury management borrowing position at 30 September 2022 and 
the movement since 31 March 2022 are summarised in Table 3.  During 
2022/23 to date there have been no maturing PWLB debt, and the council has 
not taken out any additional borrowing. 

Page 25



  AG094 
 

 

 

Table 3: Borrowing 
position 
 
 

31/03/22 
Balance 

 
 

£m 

Net 
movement 

 
 

£m 

30/09/22 
Balance 

 
 

£m 

30/09/22 
Weighted 

average 
rate 

 
% 

30/09/22 
Weighted 

average 
maturity 

(years) 

Public Works Loan Board (166.7) 0.0 (166.7) 3.2 20.0 

Total borrowing (166.7) 0.0 (166.7) 3.2 20.0 

Note: The figures in Table 3 at 31 March 2022 are from the balance sheet in the Council’s 
statement of accounts but adjusted to exclude accrued interest.  

17.2 The council’s chief objective when borrowing has been to strike an 
appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and 
achieving cost certainty over the period for which funds are required, with 
flexibility to renegotiate loans should the council’s long-term plans change 
being a secondary objective.  

17.3 In keeping with these objectives no new borrowing has been undertaken 
within the first half of the financial year. 

17.4 This borrowing strategy has been monitored with the assistance of Arlingclose 
and has enabled the council to keep long-term borrowing costs low and 
mitigates against future interest rate increases. 

18 Treasury Investment Activity 

18.1 The council holds invested funds, representing income received in advance of 
expenditure plus balances and reserves held.  During the six-month period 
from 1 April to 30 September 2022, the council’s investment balances have 
ranged between £37.0m and £65.9m due to timing differences between 
income and expenditure.   

18.2 Table 4 shows investment activity for the council as at 30 September 2022 in 
comparison to the reported activity as at 31 March 2022.  The increase in total 
investments since 31 March 2022 reflects the fact that the balance at 31 
March is typically the lowest of the year. 
 

  

Page 26



  AG094 
 

 

 

Table 4: Treasury 
investment position  

31/03/22 
Balance 

 
 

£m 

Net 
movement 

 
 

£m  

30/09/22 
Balance 

 
 

£m 

30/09/22 
Income 

return 
 

% 

30/09/22 
Weighted 

average 
maturity 

(years) 

Short term investments:             

Banks and building societies:            

- Unsecured  7.97 1.43 9.40 2.16 0.16 

- Secured  4.04 (2.04) 2.00 0.47 0.28 

Government:      

- Local authorities  3.00 (3.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 

- UK Treasury Bills 3.00 5.00 8.00 1.82 0.25 

- DMADF 4.50 2.00 6.50 2.37 0.33 

- UK Gilts 1.00 1.50 2.50 1.25 0.34 

Money market funds  18.09 (2.04) 16.05 2.08 0.00 

Supranational banks 0.0 2.50 2.50 1.25 0.21 

Cash plus funds  1.00 0.00 1.00 0.79 0.00 

 

42.60 5.35 47.95 1.91 0.16 

Long term investments:        

Banks and building societies:       

- Secured  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 

 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 

High yield investments       

Pooled property fund*  5.00 0.00 5.00 3.68 N/A 

 
5.00 0.00 5.00 3.68 N/A 

Total investments 47.60 5.35 52.95 2.08 0.16 
* The rate provided for the pooled property fund investment is reflective of annualised income 
returns over the year to 30 September 2022 based on the market value of investments 12 
months earlier. 

Note: the figures in Table 4 at 31 March 2022 are from the balance sheet in the council’s 
statement of accounts but adjusted to exclude operational cash, accrued interest and other 
accounting adjustments.  

18.3 The council made a payment of £2.6m on 1 April 2022 to prepay its 
employer’s LGPS pension contributions for one year only.  By making this 
payment in advance the council was able to generate an estimated saving of 
2.1% (£56,000) over the year on its pension contributions. 
 

18.4 Investment balances have increased since 31 March 2022 in line with 
previous years due to 31 March typically holding the lowest balances, and the 
mid-year position reflects the higher balances typically seen at this time of 
year, due to the difference in timing between income and expenditure.  A 
large proportion of investment balances continue to be held as short-term 
investments to enable the funding of the capital programme, as well as to 
meet the council’s business as usual working capital requirements. 

Page 27



  AG094 
 

 

 

 
18.5 The CIPFA Code and government guidance both require the council to invest 

its funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its 
treasury investments before seeking the optimum rate of return, or yield.  The 
council’s objective when investing money is therefore to strike an appropriate 
balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from 
defaults against the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income.  The 
council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) sets out how it 
will manage and mitigate these risks. 

18.6 The security of investments has been maintained by following the 
counterparty policy and investment limits within the TMSS, taking advice from 
Arlingclose on changes in counterparty credit worthiness, and making use of 
secured investment products that provide collateral. The council invests in 
liquid investments to ensure money is available when required to meet its 
financial obligations, spreading these investments across a number of 
counterparties to mitigate operational risk.   

18.7 In delivering investment returns, the Council has operated against a backdrop 
in which the UK Bank Rate have risen from 0.75% in April 2022 to 2.25% in 
September 2022. This has led to improved returns for liquid investment 
options such as Money Market Funds (MMFs), bank call accounts and the UK 
Government’s Debt Management Account Deposit Facility (DMADF). 
However, investment income has still largely come from investments arranged 
through the Council’s investments in pooled funds. 
 

18.8 The council benchmarks the performance of its internally managed 
investments against that of other Arlingclose clients. Internally managed 
investments include all investments except externally managed pooled funds 
but do include MMFs. The performance of these investments against relevant 
measures of security, liquidity and yield are shown in Table 5, providing the 
latest data as at 30 June 2022 and at 31 March 2022 for comparison.   

Table 5: Investment 
benchmarking (excluding 
pooled funds)  

Credit 
rating 

Bail-in 
exposure 

 
% 

Weighted 
average 
maturity 
(days) 

Rate of 
return 

 
% 

31.03.2022 AA- 63 35 0.39 

30.06.2022 AA- 79 39 1.11 

     

Similar LAs  AA- 64 45 0.89 

All LAs  AA- 64 16 0.92 

 

18.9 Table 5 shows the average credit rating of the portfolio has remained 
consistent over the first half of the financial year.  Bail-in exposure rose 
reflecting a greater balance in unsecured investments which, although 
exposed to bail in risk, are considered good investments due to their 

Page 28



  AG094 
 

 

 

diversification and AAA credit rating.  The council keeps a large proportion of 
its cash balance either short term or liquid to meet capital payments during 
the year which has led to a favourable average maturity measure.  

18.10 The council compared favourably with the other local authorities included in 
the benchmarking exercise at 30 June 2022 across most metrics.   

Externally managed pooled property fund 

18.11 In order to minimise the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income, 
the council has continued to invest a proportion of steady core balances in an 
externally managed pooled property fund as part of its higher yielding 
strategy.  

18.12 The CIPFA Code requires the council to invest its funds prudently and to have 
regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before seeking the 
highest yield. As a result, the council’s investments targeting higher yields 
have been made from its most stable balances and with the intention that they 
will be held for at least the medium term. This means that the initial costs of 
any investment and any periods of falling capital values can be overcome and 
mitigates the risk of having to sell an asset for liquidity purposes, helping to 
ensure the long-term security of the council’s investments.  

18.13 The council’s investment in the pooled property fund fell considerably in value 
when the coronavirus pandemic hit world markets but has since recovered.  
This recovery means this capital market value continues to remain 
significantly above the amount invested, as shown in Table 6.  This 
demonstrates the importance of taking a longer-term approach and being able 
to ride out periods of market volatility, ensuring the council is not a forced 
seller at the bottom of the market. 

Table 6 – Higher yielding 

investments – market 

value performance 

Amount 

invested* 

Market 

value at 

30/09/22 

Gain/(fall) in capital 

value  

Since 

purchase 

One year 

 £m £m £m £m 

Pooled property fund 5.00 6.46 1.46 0.73 

Total 5.00 6.46 1.46 0.73 

 

18.14 The council’s investment in the pooled property fund targets long-term price 
stability and regular revenue income and brings significant benefits to the 
revenue budget.  As shown in Table 7 the annualised income returns have 
averaged 26.40% pa (per annum) since purchase, contributing to a total 
return of 49.17% over its life. 

Page 29



  AG094 
 

 

 

Table 7 – Higher yielding 

investments – income and total 

returns since purchase 

Annualised 

income return 

Total return  

 % % 

Pooled property fund 26.40 49.17 

Total pooled funds 26.40 49.17 

 

18.15 The council’s pooled property fund investment continues to deliver income 
returns far in excess of what could be generated from cash investments.  The 
cumulative total return from the council’s investment in pooled property, as 
well as the previously owned investments in pooled equity funds since 
purchase is shown in the following graph.  This highlights that the council has 
benefited from strong and steady income returns over time. 

 

18.16 The IFRS 9 accounting standard that was introduced in 2018/19 means that 
annual movements in the capital values of investments need to be reflected in 
the revenue account on an annual basis, although a five-year statutory 
override was put in place for local authorities that exempts them from 
complying with this requirement. 

18.17 Pooled fund investments have no defined maturity date but are available for 
withdrawal after a notice period and their performance and continued 
suitability in meeting the council’s investment objectives is monitored regularly 
and discussed with Arlingclose. 

19 Other Non-Treasury Holdings and Activity  

19.1 The definition of investments in CIPFA’s revised Treasury Management Code 
now covers all the financial assets of the council as well as other non-financial 

Page 30



  AG094 
 

 

 

assets which the council holds primarily for financial return. Investments that 
do not meet the definition of treasury management investments (i.e. 
management of surplus cash) are categorised as either for service purposes 
(made explicitly to further service objectives) and or for commercial purposes 
(made primarily for financial return). 

19.2 Investment Guidance issued by the Department for Levelling Up Housing and 
Communities (DLUHC) and Welsh Government also broadens the definition 
of investments to include all such assets held partially or wholly for financial 
return. 

19.3 This could include loans made to local businesses or the direct purchase of 
land or property and such loans and investments will be subject to the 
council’s normal approval process for revenue and capital expenditure and 
need not comply with the treasury management strategy. 

19.4 Further information on the council’s non-Treasury investments is included in 
CAB3352 General Fund Outturn 2021/22 presented to Cabinet on 19 July 
2022. 
 

20 Compliance Report  

20.1 The council confirms compliance of all treasury management activities 
undertaken during the period covered by this report with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice and the council’s Treasury Management Strategy. 

20.2 Compliance with the authorised limit and operational boundary for external 
debt is demonstrated in Table 8.  

 Table 8: Debt limits  2022/23 
Maximum 

 
£m  

30/09/22 
Actual 

 
£m  

2022/23 
Operational 

Boundary 
£m  

2022/23 
Authorised 

Limit 
£m  

Complied? 
 
 

  

Borrowing  166.7 166.7 337.0 353.9 ✓  

Other long-term liabilities  0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 ✓  

Total debt  166.7 166.7 337.0 353.9 ✓  

 

20.3 The total actual debt as measured by the debt limits was £166.7m on 30 
September 2022 which is the council’s £166.7m PWLB debt.  

20.4 Since the operational boundary is a management tool for in-year monitoring it 
is not significant if the operational boundary is breached on occasions due to 
variations in cash flow, and this is not counted as a compliance failure. 

Page 31



  AG094 
 

 

 

21 Treasury Management Indicators  

21.1 The council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management 
risks using the following indicators.  

Interest rate exposures  

21.2 The following indicator shows the sensitivity of the council’s current 
investments and borrowing to a change in interest rates: 

Table 9 – Interest rate risk indicator  30/09/22 
Actual 

Impact of +/-1% 
interest rate change 

Sums subject to variable interest rates:   

Investments £48.0m +/- £0.5m 

Borrowing  £0.0m +/- £0.0m 

 

21.3 Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is 
fixed for the whole financial year.  Instruments that mature during the financial 
year are classed as variable rate.    

Maturity structure of borrowing  

21.4 This indicator is set to control the council’s exposure to refinancing risk.  The 
upper and lower limits show the maximum and minimum maturity exposure to 
fixed rate borrowing as agreed in the TMSS: 

Table 10: Refinancing rate risk 
indicator  

30/09/22 
Actual 

Upper 
Limit 

Lower 
Limit 

Complied 

Under 12 months  3% 25% 0% ✓ 

12 months and within 24 months  3% 25% 0% ✓ 

24 months and within 5 years  12% 25% 0% ✓ 

5 years and within 10 years  21% 30% 0% ✓ 

10 years and within 20 years  21% 50% 0% ✓ 

20 years and within 30 years  12% 50% 0% ✓ 

30 years and within 40 years  22% 75% 0% ✓ 

40 years and within 50 years  6% 100% 0% ✓ 

 

Principal sums invested for periods longer than a year  

21.5 The purpose of this indicator is to control the council’s exposure to the risk of 
incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its investments.  The limits on 
the long-term principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end 
were: 

Page 32



  AG094 
 

 

 

Table 11: Price risk indicator   2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

Actual principal invested beyond year end  £5m £5m £5m 

Limit on principal invested beyond year end  £20m £18m £15m 

Complied  ✓ ✓ ✓ 

 

21.6 The table includes investments in strategic pooled funds of £5m as although 
these can usually be redeemed at short notice, the council intends to hold 
these investments for at least the medium term. 

22 Other 

CIPFA consultation – IFRS 16 

22.1 The implementation of the new IFRS 16 Leases accounting standard was due 
to come into force for local authorities from 1st April 2022. However, following 
a consultation, CIFPA/LASAAC announced an optional two-year delay to the 
implementation of this standard - a decision which was confirmed by the 
Financial Reporting Advisory Board in early April 2022.  Authorities can now 
choose to adopt the new standard on 1st April 2022, 1st April 2023 or 1st April 
2024.  The council intends to adopt the new standard on 1st April 2024. 
 

Arlingclose’s outlook for the remainder of 2022/23  

  

22.2 Arlingclose expects Bank Rates to rise further during 2022/23 to reach 5% by 
the end of the year. 

22.3 The MPC is particularly concerned about the demand implications of fiscal 
loosening, the tight labour market, sterling weakness and the willingness of 
firms to raise prices and wages. The MPC may therefore raise Bank Rate 
more quickly and to a higher level to dampen aggregate demand and reduce 
the risk of sustained higher inflation. Arlingclose now expects Bank Rate to 
peak at 5.0%, with 200bps of increases this calendar year. This action by the 
MPC will slow the economy, necessitating cuts in Bank Rate later in 2024. 

22.4 Gilt yields will face further upward pressure in the short term due to lower 
confidence in UK fiscal policy, higher inflation expectations and asset sales by 
the BoE. Given the recent sharp rises in gilt yields, the risks are now broadly 
balanced to either side. Over the longer term, gilt yields are forecast to fall 
slightly over the forecast period.  
 

Page 33



  AG094 
 

 

 

22.5 Monetary policymakers are behind the curve having only raising rates by 
50bps in September.  This was before the “Mini-Budget”, poorly received by 
the markets, triggered a rout in gilts with a huge spike in yields and a further 
fall in sterling. In a shift from recent trends, the focus now is perceived to be 
on supporting sterling whilst also focusing on subduing high inflation.  
 

22.6 The government's blank cheque approach to energy price caps, combined 
with international energy markets priced in dollars, presents a fiscal mismatch 
that has contributed to significant decline in sterling and sharp rises in gilt 
yields which will feed through to consumers' loans and mortgages and 
business funding costs.  
 

22.7 UK government policy has mitigated some of the expected rise in energy 
inflation for households and businesses flattening the peak for CPI, whilst 
extending the duration of elevated CPI. Continued currency weakness could 
add inflationary pressure.  
 

22.8 The UK economy already appears to be in recession, with business activity 
and household spending falling. The short- to medium-term outlook for the UK 
economy is relatively bleak. 
 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

Treasury Management Practices, 22 June 2015 

Treasury Management Mid-Year Monitoring Report 2021/22 

Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23 

Treasury Management Outturn 2021/22 

Other Background Documents:- 

None 

 APPENDICES: 

None 

Page 34



 
 

AG092 
AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

 

REPORT TITLE: FINAL REPORT AND PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2023/24 
 
10 NOVEMBER 2022 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: Cllr Margot Power, Cabinet member for Finance 
and Value  

Contact Officer: Robert O’Reilly (Service Lead HR)    Tel No: 07890732036 Email 
ROReilly@winchester.gov.uk  

WARD(S):  ALL 
 

 

PURPOSE 

This Pay Policy Statement is provided in accordance with Section 38(1) of the 
Localism Act 2011 and will be updated annually from 1 April each year. 
 
The Pay Policy Statement sets out Winchester City Council’s policies relating to the 
pay of its workforce for the financial year 2023/24, in particular: 

 the remuneration of its Chief Officers; 

 the remuneration of its “lowest paid employees”; and 

 the relationship between: 
o the remuneration of its Chief Officers and 
o the remuneration of its employees who are not Chief Officers. 

 
The purpose of the statement is to provide an open and transparent framework that 
ensures clarity, fairness and consistency in the remuneration of Chief Officers. It also 
ensures that employees at all levels of the Council are remunerated on a fair and 
equitable basis in accordance with equality legislation. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That the Pay Policy Statement for the financial year 2023/24 is recommended 

to Council for adoption. 

 
 
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



 
 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME 

1.1 Publishing an Annual Pay Policy Statement demonstrates an open and 
transparent approach to determining how council employees are 
remunerated.  Defining key principles of how remuneration is determined 
contributes to the objective of achieving a balanced budget and stable council 
finances. 
  

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 There are no additional financial implications for the council in adopting this 
Pay Policy Statement.  The proposed 2023/24 budget fully reflects the 
assumptions in the Pay Policy Statement. 

2.2 The level of remuneration is a very important factor in both recruitment and 
retention of staff.  There is a need to balance affordability and value for money 
with creating a reward framework that ensures the council can recruit, retain, 
motivate and develop employees who have the skills and capabilities 
necessary to ensure the continued provision of high quality services. 

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 The Pay Policy Statement 2023/24 takes full account of the Secretary of 
State’s guidance in relation to open and transparent reporting of senior level 
pay in addition to relevant legislative requirements.  This includes ensuring 
that there is an appropriate relationship between the remuneration levels of 
our senior managers and of all other employees. 

3.2 The Pay Policy Statement 2023/24 takes account of: 

 the Local Government Transparency Code 2015 issued by the 
Department for Communities and Local Government in February 2015  

 Openness and Accountability in Local Pay: Guidance under S40 of 
Localism Act 2011 issued in February 2012  

 Openness and Accountability in Local Pay: Guidance under S40 of 
Localism Act 2011 Supplementary Guidance issued in February 2013  

 guidance issued by the Joint National Council (JNC) for Local Authority 
Chief Executives on pay policy statements, published in November 
2011 and supplementary notes published in January and March 2012  

 Employment and equalities legislation affecting local authority 
employers, where relevant.  
 

3.3 The Council’s current Contract Procedure Rules encourages existing 
contractors to apply the Living Wage Foundation rates of pay and for new 
contractors to submit a plan on how they will implement the Living Wage 

Page 36



 
 

foundation rates of pay should they be awarded the contract when bidding for 
contracts.  

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 The overall approach to the remuneration for all employees, including senior 
management is based on: 

 compliance with equal pay, discrimination and other relevant 
employment legislation such as the Equality Act 2010; and  

 ensuring that our overall remuneration packages position the council as 
an “employer of choice” and that as such our “total reward package” is 
competitive within the local government and public sector markets 

4.2 In the application of the remuneration framework, the council takes into 
account market rates, individual performance and the need for consistency in 
the way remuneration bandings are applied.  All remuneration differentials can 
be objectively justified using job evaluation mechanisms that directly establish 
the relative levels of posts in remuneration bands according to the 
requirements, demands and responsibilities of the post. 

4.3 In determining remuneration, the council recognises the need to exercise the 
greatest care in managing scarce public resources while securing and 
retaining high quality employees.  The principle of fair pay is important to the 
provision of well-managed services and the council is committed to ensuring 
fairness and equity in its remuneration practices. 

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS  

5.1 None.  

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 The Localism Act 2011 requires the Council to publish a Pay Policy Statement 
on an annual basis.  There are no material changes to the provisions set out 
in previous policy statements and there is therefore no requirement to consult 
on this policy wider than the scrutiny by the Audit & Governance Committee. 

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 None. 

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT  

8.1 There is no differential impact on a specified group as all HR matters are 
applied consistently. 

8.2 As required nationally, the council reports on any potential discrepancies in 
pay, based on gender (“Gender Pay Gap” reporting); in accordance with the 
statutory timeframe. 

Page 37



 
 

8.3 An equality impact assessment has been completed on the implementation of 
the Pay Policy Statement and no negative impacts from the policy have been 
identified. The EIA will be reviewed annually alongside the Pay Policy 
Statement. 

8.4 As requested at the February 2021 meeting of the Audit and Governance 
Committee, the distribution of gender by grade is now provided in the annual 
report (Appendix 2). 

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 This report does not contain confidential data and so there is no need to 
undertake a Data Protection Impact Assessment. 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 

Financial Exposure 

Failure to recruit / retain 

necessary, high-quality 

employees leading to 

increased costs of 

employing locum / agency 

staff 

 

Assessment of market 

rates and individual 

performance combined 

with consistent 

application of 

remuneration bandings. 

 

Positioning the council as 

an Employer of Choice. 

Exposure to challenge 

Failure to comply with the 

publication requirements 

of the Localism Act 2011, 

resulting in adverse local 

media coverage or legal 

challenge 

 

Pay policy review is 

embedded within the 

committee work 

programme to ensure 

annual publication. 

 

Reputation 

Failure to recruit / retain 

necessary, high-quality 

employees leading to 

service delivery delays / 

failures. 

 

Assessment of market 

rates and individual 

performance combined 

with consistent 

application of 

remuneration bandings 

 

Other 

Potential increase in 

sickness absence 

amongst lower paid staff 

if they do not believe their 

contribution to the council 

is valued. 

 

Revisions to the pay 

scales implemented 

during April 2019 

improved the basic pay 

for staff; the council 

remains a Living Wage 

Foundation employer. 

 

 

Page 38



 
 

 
11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

11.1 Government has sought to encourage transparency on remuneration and as 
such every council is required to prepare and adopt a Pay Policy Statement 
and have that statement approved by Council.  The Pay Policy Statement 
must contain the policy for the remuneration of the council’s employees on 
appointment, subsequent progression and any use of bonus or performance 
related pay.  There are specific requirements as to the appointment of Chief 
Officers set out in the council’s Constitution.  The Pay Policy Statement sets 
out the approach to the remuneration of Chief Officers on their ceasing to hold 
office or to be employed by the authority. 

11.2 The Localism Act 2011 (“The Act”) requires councils to define ‘lowest paid 
employees’, to consider the relationship between the remuneration of the 
highest and lowest paid and to explain the rationale for their approach and to 
publish details of pay relativities to encourage fairness in remuneration. 

11.3 The Pay Policy Statement 2023/24 does not contain any substantial changes 
to those considered previously. 

11.4 The Pay Policy Statement sets principles and rules relating to the 
remuneration of senior employees.  It does not set out the details of individual 
payments made in accordance with these principles – although there are 
separate requirements for the publication of payments made to senior staff in 
the annual statement of accounts. 

11.5 The nationally agreed local government pay award is applied from the 1 April 
each year and the Pay Policy Statement will be updated when this has been 
agreed. 

KEY POLICY ISSUES 

11.6 There are a number of matters to note in the attached Pay Policy Statement: 

a) The Policy uses the term “Chief Officers” to identify senior employees, 
or those in receipt of the highest remuneration.  This reflects a 
requirement in the Act, where the definition covers a number of senior 
posts which for Winchester City Council equates to senior posts paid at 
Scale 10 and above.  The Policy recommends the current practice of 
adopting national pay schemes and job evaluation procedures as a 
basis for determining remuneration, and so which posts cross the 
threshold for consideration under the Pay Policy. 

b) The definition of “lowest paid employees”, required to show pay 
relativities, draws on Scale 3 of the pay scales, the lowest pay of 
permanent staff in the Council at present.  The ratio of remuneration for 
highest to lowest paid is under 10:1 – the benchmark set by 
Government. 

Page 39



 
 

c) The City Council is a ‘Living Wage Employer’ which means that a 
nationally agreed minimum hourly rate of pay is applied to directly 
employed employees. 

d) The Policy also covers increases and additions to remuneration for 
example, bonus payments.  This is already covered by our adopted 
pay scheme and policies on annual incremental increases, which the 
Policy refers to.  The Policy also makes clear at present the council has 
not adopted performance related pay or a system of bonus payments, 
and sets out the policy on payment of honoraria. 

e) There is transparency on payments to those leaving employment, and 
so the Act requires the council to publish a policy on severance 
payments. 

 

12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

12.1 Publishing an annual Pay Policy Statement is a statutory requirement under 
the Localism Act 2011 therefore no other options were considered. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

AG041 Final Report and Pay Policy Statement for Audit and Governance on 11 Feb 
2021 v9 020221 

AG062 Final Report and Pay Policy Statement for Audit and Governance on 11 
November 2021. 

Other Background Documents:- 

None. 

APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1 – Pay Policy Statement 2023/24 

Appendix 2 – Gender Distribution by Grade 

  

Page 40



 
 

 
Appendix 1 

Winchester City Council 
Pay Policy Statement – Financial Year 2023/24 

 
1. Purpose 

 
1.1 This Pay Policy Statement is provided in accordance with Section 38(1) of 

the Localism Act 2011 and will be updated annually from 1 April each year. 
 
1.2 The Pay Policy Statement sets out Winchester City Council’s policies 

relating to the remuneration of its workforce for the financial year 
2023/24, in particular: 

 

 the remuneration of its Chief Officers 

 the remuneration of its “lowest paid employees” 

 the relationship between: 
o the remuneration of its Chief Officers and 
o the remuneration of its employees who are not Chief Officers 

 
1.3 The purpose of the statement is to provide an open and transparent 

framework that ensures clarity, fairness and consistency in the remuneration 
of Chief Officers.  It also ensures that employees at all levels of the council 
are paid on a fair and equitable basis in accordance with equality legislation. 

 
2. Definitions 

 
2.1 For the purpose of this statement the following definitions will apply: 

 
2.2 “Remuneration” in addition to salary will also include charges, fees, 

allowances, benefits in kind, increases in/enhancements to pension 
entitlements, and termination payments. 

 
2.3 “Chief Officer” refers to the Statutory Chief officers (Head of Paid Service, 

Monitoring Officer and S151 Officer) and to Strategic Directors. 
 
2.4 “Lowest paid employees” refers to those employed on Grade 3 of the 

council’s pay framework. 
 
2.4.1  The above definition for the “lowest paid employees” has been adopted 

because Grade 3 is the lowest grade on which employees are 
presently paid within the council’s pay framework. 

 
2.4.2  Those engaged on Casual Worker Agreements are paid a fixed hourly rate in 

line with the voluntary UK Living Wage.  They are excluded from the 
definition of “lowest paid employees”. 

 

Page 41



 
 

2.5 “Employee who is not a Chief Officer” refers to all employees that are 
not covered under the “Chief Officer” group above.  This includes the 
“lowest paid employees” i.e. employees on Grade 3. 

 
3. Pay Framework and Remuneration Levels 

 
3.1 General Approach 

 
3.1.1  Remuneration for all employees needs to be at the appropriate level to 

secure and retain high-quality employees dedicated to fulfilling the council’s 
business objectives and delivering services to the public.  This has to be 
balanced by ensuring remuneration is proportionate and appropriate for the 
role.  Each council has responsibility for balancing these factors and faces 
its own unique challenges and opportunities in doing so.  It is important that 
Winchester City Council retains flexibility within its pay framework to cope 
with a variety of circumstances that might necessitate the use of market 
supplements or other such mechanisms for individual categories of posts 
where appropriate.  Using such solutions should only be short term and 
regular reviews should ensure that they are discontinued when 
circumstances change. 

 
3.2 Responsibility for Decisions on Remuneration 

 
3.2.1  It is essential for good governance that decisions on remuneration and 

reward packages for the Chief Executive and Chief Officers are made in 
an open and accountable way and that there is a verified and accountable 
process for recommending the levels of top salaries. 

 
3.2.2  Remuneration for employees at all grades is based on the national 

agreements on pay as follows: 
 

 National Joint Council for Local Government Services  

 Joint Negotiating Council for Chief Officers 

 Joint Negotiating Council for Chief Executives. 
 
3.2.3 Remuneration packages above £100,000 gross per annum must be 

considered by cabinet, with a recommendation to full council.   
 
3.3 Salary grades and grading framework 

 
3.3.1  Grades for all posts are determined by a consistent job evaluation process.  

This followed a national requirement for all Local Authorities and other 
public sector employers to review their remuneration and grading 
frameworks to ensure fair and consistent practice for different groups of 
workers with the same employer. 

 
3.3.2  Job Evaluation is a systematic process for ranking jobs within an 

organisation ensuring consistency of approach and outcomes appropriate to 
the complexity and accountability of the role.  Where the grade of a post 

Page 42



 
 

changes as a result of the job evaluation process, any pay adjustment will 
only be backdated to the date on which the role was considered by a Job 
Evaluation Panel.  

 
3.3.3  The council’s pay structure is based on the pay spine issued by the National 

Joint Council (NJC) as part of the National Agreement for Local Government 
Services.  Roles are placed within the pay structure on the basis of the 
evaluated grade of their role. 

 
3.3.4  Incremental spinal column points provide for progression in role with the  

acquisition of skills, experience and competence (subject to satisfactory 
performance). 

 
3.3.5   Pay awards are applied in line with the national agreements detailed in 

3.2.2 on an annual basis for all employees, in conjunction with the nationally 
recognised trade unions. 

 
3.4 Market Review and Market Payments 

 
3.4.1 The council will from time to time, benchmark its remuneration and benefits 

by comparing a sample of posts.  For the purpose of benchmarking and 
market testing the comparator group comprises public sector authorities in 
Hampshire, West Sussex and Surrey and authorities in other areas if 
relevant, who are similar to the council in terms of size (number of employees 
and population) and similar relevant factors.  Jobs within London Boroughs 
will not be used for comparator purposes due to London weighting allowance.  
In exceptional circumstances, other external market pay data, including 
private sector data, will also be considered where relevant. 

 
3.4.2 Where the benchmarking exercise highlights a discrepancy in remuneration, 

following consideration of a report made to the Executive Leadership Board 
a market supplement may be awarded, subject to annual review.  Market 
supplements are typically paid as a fixed monthly amount. 

 

3.4.3 Decisions relating to awarding a market supplement for the Chief Executive 
will be referred to cabinet, with a recommendation to full council. 

 

3.4.4 In some circumstances, targeted recruitment (i.e. ‘Golden hellos’) and 
retention (i.e. ‘Golden handcuffs’) payments can be more effective than 
market supplements in addressing ‘hard to fill’ vacancies.  In contrast to 
market supplements, these are typically one-off payments at the start or 
end of a set period with repayment terms in the event of an early 
resignation from post. 

 

3.4.5 Where evidence supports a recruitment/retention payment, the Chief 
Executive will approve the payment and repayment terms in the event of an 
early resignation from post. 

Page 43



 
 

4. Remuneration 
 
4.1     Remuneration details including benefits in kind are set out in the council’s 

published Annual Statement of Accounts. 
 
4.2     “Chief Officers”, as defined in paragraph 2.3 of this statement, are 

paid within the council’s pay framework which applies to all other 
employees.  Typically, Chief Officers have received the same percentage 
pay award as other managers and employees within the council. 

 
4.4 “Lowest paid employees” 

 
4.4.1  Winchester City Council is an accredited Living Wage Employer. The Living 

Wage is paid voluntarily and is set to avoid poverty wages and support the 
principle that workers should be paid at a level which enables them to 
achieve an acceptable standard of living.  The lowest paid employees are 
presently paid within the salary range for Grade 3 which covers six salary 
points ranging between £20,444 - £22,571 (pay award pending). 

 
4.4.2  The lowest paid employees do not include apprentices for whom there 

are separate remuneration arrangements. 
 
4.5 Honoraria and Additional Responsibilities 

 
4.5.1  All employees are expected to perform any other duties commensurate with 

their job grade as reasonably required from time to time.  However, there 
may be occasions where an employee agrees to take on additional duties 
and responsibilities that may be at the same level of their substantive grade 
but are beyond the reasonable scope of their normal job remit.  In such 
circumstances, subject to approval from the Executive Leadership Board, an 
honorarium payment may be awarded.  Honoraria are awarded in £100 
multiples and should not normally exceed £500.  Awards up to a maximum of 
£1,000 may be approved by the Executive Leadership Board in specific 
circumstances. 

 
4.5.2  The appropriate Strategic Director, in consultation with ELB, may award an 

“acting up” allowance where an employee takes on temporary increased 
responsibility.   

 
4.5.3 The amount awarded should reflect the nature and duration of the work or 

responsibility.  Where the employee has been covering the long term 
absence of a more senior officer, “acting up” payments are calculated 
based on the difference between the employee’s scale point and the bottom 
scale point of the role they are covering.  Temporary acting-up 
arrangements of this nature will not exceed more than 12 months duration 
and should generally be undertaken for at least one month before payment 
will apply. 

 
 

Page 44



 
 

4.6 Charges, fees or allowances 
 

4.6.1  No fees for election duties are included in the salaries of Chief Officers.  
Any additional fees payable for such responsibilities are calculated in 
accordance with the statutory rules and associated guidance which is 
published by Government. 

 
4.6.2  Special fees are paid for Returning Officer duties which are not part of the 

post holder’s substantive role.  These fees are payable as required and can 
be made to any senior officer appointed to fulfil the statutory duties of this 
role. 

 
4.6.3 The Returning Officer is an officer of the City Council who is appointed 

under the Representation of the People Act 1983.  Whilst appointed by 
the City Council, the role is one which involves and incurs personal 
responsibility and accountability and is statutorily separate from their duties 
as an employee of the council.  The Returning Officer is paid a separate 
allowance for each election for which they are responsible. 

 
4.6.3  Where the council’s Monitoring Officer or S151 Officer is not a Chief Officer, 

a special responsibility allowance of £3,000 gross per annum is paid in 
recognition of the additional requirements of the statutory role.  This 
payment is currently subject to review and benchmarking with other councils 
to inform whether this additional payment is at an appropriate level.  The 
outcome of the review will be applied from 1 April 2023. 

 
4.6.4  Any allowance or other payment will only be made to an employee in 

connection with their role or the patterns of hours they work and must be 
in accordance with the council’s employment policies. 

 
4.6.5  Where the council offers voluntary benefits e.g. childcare vouchers and 

employee discount schemes, they are offered to all employees regardless of 
their role and grade within the council. 

 
4.7 Performance related pay 

 
4.7.1  Performance is reviewed annually through the council’s appraisal system 

and the council reserves the right to withhold increments where performance 
has not met the required standard and where this has been raised with the 
employee formally.  Beyond annual increments awarded in this way, the 
council does not offer performance related pay to any employee. 

 
4.7.2 Subject to approval from the appropriate Corporate Head of Service and 

Strategic Director, an employee may receive more than 1 increment in any 
financial year. 

 
 
 
4.8 Pension 

Page 45



 
 

 
4.8.1  All employees, as a result of their employment, are eligible to join the 

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).   
 
 

4.8.2  In addition to the employee’s own contribution, the council makes a 
contribution of 18% towards the pension of each member of the LGPS 
scheme. 

 
4.9 Remuneration on appointment and promotion 

 
4.9.1 The starting salary on appointment or following promotion will normally be 

based on the appointee’s level of relevant experience and current salary, 
regardless of whether they are a current employee of Winchester City 
Council.   

 
4.9.2 The chair of the recruitment panel has the discretion to determine the 

appropriate spinal column point within the agreed pay scale but the 
starting salary should not exceed the mid-point of the pay scale.  In 
exceptional circumstances (e.g. the current salary is higher than the mid-
point of the scale), the Service Lead: Human Resources or in their absence, 
the HR Manager: People, may authorise appointment on a spinal column 
point which is higher than the mid-point of the scale.  

 
5. Relationship between Remuneration of “Chief Officers” and 

“Employees who are not Chief Officers” 
 
5.1 It is the policy of the council to ensure that the ratio of the salary of the 

highest paid officer and the lowest paid officer is below the 10:1 ratio 
recommended as a maximum in the terms of reference for the 2011 Hutton 
review of Fair Pay in the Public Sector. 

5.2 As at 1st April 2022, pay ratios within the council stand as follows (pay 
award pending): 

Highest: lowest = 6.6:1 
 

5.3 This is based on the following salary packages: 

 Highest paid annual salary = £128,717 

 Lowest paid (minimum grade 3) = £20,444 
  

6. Benefits in kind 
 
6.1 The council pays professional fees for officers where it is an essential 

requirement for the post holder to maintain professional accreditation.  Only 
one set of professional fees are paid per annum. 

 
6.2 The council offers a Health Care Cash Plan scheme which is available to 

all employees regardless of their role and grade within the council. 

Page 46



 
 

 
6.3 A Park and Ride pass is offered to all employees. 
 
6.4 Officer who are designated as “Essential Car Users” are issued with a permit 

for one of the car parks nearer to the council offices to enable them to meet 
the specific operational requirements of their role.  

 

7. Termination Payments 

 
7.1 Payments made on termination of employment are limited to those expressly 

required or allowed by law.  In accordance with the council’s Constitution, 
termination payments which exceed £100,000 (regardless of the post to 
which they apply and the reasons for the payment) require approval from full 
council. The recommendation, if approved, would then need to be submitted 
to government for approval as a waiver to the Exit Pay Cap legislation.  

 

8. Access to Pension Payments 

 

8.1 In some circumstances, an employee may be eligible to access their pension 
on termination of employment. 

 

8.2 The LGPS requires employers to prepare and publish a written statement of 
policy in relation to the payment of pensions.  The council’s policy on 
pensions (and related discretionary payments) is set out in Annex A of this 
document. 

 

9. Redundancy Payments 

 

9.1 The calculation of redundancy payments is based on the provisions of 
Employment Rights Act 1996 and may be subject to revision should this 
legislation be amended. 

 
9.2 Redundancy payments are based on a ratio of completed years’ service and 

the employees’ age at the effective date of termination, using a multiplier of 
1.6.  Completed years’ service will be capped at 20 years and the maximum 
of 48 weeks’ pay will apply.  The council uses the employee’s actual 
contractual pay to calculate redundancy payments.  

 

10.   Settlement Agreements 

 

10.1 In exceptional circumstances, and specifically to settle an employment 
tribunal claim or similar significant dispute, the Corporate Head of Finance 
can agree payment of a settlement up to £10,000. 

 

10.2 In such cases, each decision as the level of payment will be taken on its 
merits.  Where the proposed termination payment exceeds £10,000, 
approval from the Section 151 Officer and one other Chief Officer is required. 

 

Page 47



 
 

10.3 In accordance with the council’s constitution, settlement payments which 
exceed £100,000 (regardless of the post to which they apply) require 
approval from full council.  

 

11.   Re-employment of officers 

 

11.1 When an employee is dismissed on the grounds of redundancy, the council 
will not re-employ them for a period of 12 months following the termination. 

 

11.2 When an employee ceases employment with the council on the grounds of 
early retirement with the employers consent, the council will not re-employ 
them for a period of 12 months following the termination. 

 

12.   Data Transparency 
 
12.1 Under the Local Government Transparency Code 2014, remuneration 

information and a list of responsibilities for employees paid over £50,000 
must be published.  This information is available on the council’s external 
website. Senior employees’ remuneration can also be found in the annual 
Statement of Accounts.   

Page 48



 
 

Annex A 

 
Pensions Discretions Policy Statement  

 
The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 and Local 
Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and 

Amendment) Regulations 2014 
 

1. Introduction 

 
1.1 This policy statement is made in accordance with Paragraph 60 of the Local 

Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 and Paragraph 2 (2) of 

Schedule 2 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional 

Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014. 

 
1.2 It sets out how Winchester City Council will apply discretionary provisions 

available within those Regulations. 

 

1.3 This policy applies to all employees of Winchester City Council who are 

members of the Local Government Pension Scheme.  It does not apply to 

Elected Members of the council. 

 

1.4 In formulating and reviewing its policy, the council: 

 

 has regard to the extent to which the exercise of discretionary powers, 

unless properly limited, could lead to serious loss of confidence in the 

public service; and 

 is satisfied that the policy is workable, affordable and reasonable having 

regard to the foreseeable costs. 

 
2. Purpose of this Policy 

 
2.1 This policy aims to provide fairness and consistency in situations where 

the council is agreeing to the release of accrued pension benefits. 

 
3. Flexible Retirement – Regulations 30 (6) and 30 (8) ( 2013 Regulations) 

 
3.1 The Pension Scheme allows for flexible retirement from age 55 with the 

payment of all or part of accrued pension benefits in situations where the 

employer agrees to the hours of work or the level of responsibility being 

reduced and to the release of pension benefits.  In most cases, the 

pension benefits will be reduced if taken before normal retirement age. 

 

Page 49



 
 

3.2 Flexible retirement can benefit both the employee through enabling a 

gradual adjustment to retirement and the council through the ability to 

retain valuable experience and knowledge; it also increases the 

opportunity for succession planning and reflects the ethos of flexible 

working. 

 
3.3 The council will consider all requests for flexible retirement in response to 

written requests from eligible employees. 

 
3.4 The Council will approve requests only where it is in their interest to do so; 

where there is no adverse impact on the service; where the costs are 

affordable or where there are likely to be cost savings achieved as a result 

of the proposal. 

 
3.5 A request should typically involve a substantial reduction of at least 40% 

in remuneration, either through reduced hours or level of responsibility. 

 
3.6 Requests for flexible retirement will be considered by the Executive 

Leadership Board.  Where a request for flexible retirement is from a Chief 

Officer, the decision will be made by the Chief Executive.  Requests for 

flexible retirement from the Chief Executive will require approval from full 

council.  

 
4. Awarding Additional Pension – Regulation 31( 2013 Regulations) 

 
4.1 The council will not make use of the provision to award additional pension. 

 
4.2 This discretion is therefore not exercised. 

 
5. Shared Cost Additional Voluntary Contributions (SCAVC) and Shared Cost 

Additional Pension Contributions (SCAPC) – Regulations 16(2) (e) and 16(4) 
(d) ( 2013 Regulations) 

 
5.1 The Council will exercise discretion to allow Local Government Pension 

Scheme Members to contribute to a shared cost salary sacrifice additional 

voluntary contribution scheme. 

 
5.2 The Council will not exercise its discretion to allow Local Government 

Pension Scheme Members to contribute to a Shared Cost Additional 

Pension Contributions Scheme. 

 
6. Discretion to “switch on” the 85 year rule for 55 year olds and older but 

before the age of 60 – Para 1(1) (c ) Schedule 2 of the 2014 Regulations 

 

Page 50



 
 

6.1 The Council will only exercise this discretion where there is a business 

reason to do so and where any costs associated with the discretion are 

affordable and sustainable to the council.  Requests will be considered by 

the Executive Leadership Board. 

 
7. Waiving Reduction due to Early Payment of Pension – Regulation 30 (8) ( 

2013 Regulations) 

 
7.1 Employees can retire from age 55 and receive immediate payment of their 

pension benefits however the pension benefits payable will be subject to 
an actuarial reduction. 

 
7.2 The council will exercise the discretion to waive the actuarial reduction 

where Regulation 30 (7) is applicable (that is where employment is 
terminated on the grounds of redundancy or in the interest of business 
efficiency). 

 
7.3 The council will exercise this discretion only where there is a business 

reason to do so and where any costs associated with the discretion are 

affordable and sustainable to the council.  Requests will be considered by 

the Executive Leadership Board.  

8. Early Payment of Deferred Pension Benefits – Regulation 30 of the LGPS 

(Benefits, Membership and Contributions) Regulations 2007 

 

8.1 The council will not normally exercise this discretion but may consider it in 

exceptional circumstances where any costs associated with the discretion 

are affordable and sustainable to the council. 

 

8.2 Requests will be considered by the Executive Leadership Board 
 
9. Transfer of Pension Rights – Regulation 100 (6) ( 2013 Regulations) 

 
9.1 The Regulations permit the employer to extend the normal time limit 

(currently 12 months) during which a scheme member may transfer 

service from a previous employer. 

 
9.2 The council will not make use of the provision to extend the normal time 

limit. 

 
9.3 This discretion is therefore not exercised.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 
 

10.   Aggregation of Membership - Regulations 22, 7(b) 8(b) (2013   Regulations) 

 
10.1 If a member has a deferred, pre-1April 2014 LGPS pension account, the 

Regulations allow for them to make a decision about whether it is combined 
with their new LGPS membership.  If the LGPS account was deferred on or 
after 1 April 2014 the Regulations allow the member to elect to keep them 
separate. 

 
10.2 Any such decision to maintain combined or separate pension accounts must 

be made within 12 months of becoming an active member. 
 
10.3 The Regulations permit the employer to extend the normal timescale. 
 
10.4 The council will not make use of the provision to extend the normal time limit. 
 
10.5 This discretion is therefore not exercised. 
 
11. Other Discretions  

 
11.1 With the exception of the discretions set out in this policy statement, the 

council will not exercise any pension discretions pursuant to the 2013 and 

2014 Regulations. 

12. Review of the Policy 

 
12.1 This policy will be reviewed by Human Resources annually. 

 

 

  

Page 52



 
 

Appendix 2 

 
Gender distribution by grade 

The council has an overall gender split of 60% female to 40% male employees. 
 
 
 

1 September 2021 
 

 1 September 2022 

 

 F% M% 
 

  F% M% 
 

Chief Executive 100 0  Chief Executive 100 0 

Director 67 33  Director 67 33 

Corporate Head of 
Service 

63 37  Corporate Head of 
Service 

63 37 

Grade 9 44 56  Grade 9 43 57 

Grade 8 35 65  Grade 8 32 68 

Grade 7 48 52  Grade 7 37 63 

Grade 6 60 40  Grade 6 53 47 

Grade 5 65 35  Grade 5 67 33 

Grade 4 63 37  Grade 4 64 36 

Grade 3/2 71 29  Grade 3/2 70 30 

 
 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

AG085 
AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

REPORT TITLE: UPDATE ON EMPLOYEE ATTITUDE SURVEY AND RELATED 
MATTERS 
 
10 NOVEMBER 2022 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: CLLR MARGOT POWER – CABINET MEMBER 
FOR FINANCE AND VALUE  

Contact Officer:  Robert O’Reilly    Tel No: 07890732036 Email 
ROReilly@winchester.gov.uk 

 

WARD(S):  ALL 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to present the results of the Employee Attitude Survey 
(EAS) which took place in June 2022 to the Audit and Governance (A&G) 
Committee. The results have been published on the HR intranet site and shared with 
colleagues via an article in City Voice in early October. 

There has been opportunity for the EAS results to be considered by the Cabinet 
Member, the Executive Leadership Board (ELB), Unison and the Staff Forum. 
Recommendations for action arising from these discussions are shown below.  

This report also updates the committee on related matters.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That HR work on a revised appraisal form which more clearly links to council 

objectives and the council’s values (for implementation in April 2023). 

2. That HR support managers with training on appraisals and that the 

experience and effectiveness of the appraisal meetings be reviewed by 

seeking feedback from staff and managers.  

3. That additional focus be given to the understanding of the council’s Equality, 

Diversity and Inclusion policy. 

4. That the well-established meetings between HR and the recognised trade 

union continue in order to support organisational development and effectively 

Page 55

Agenda Item 9

mailto:ROReilly@winchester.gov.uk


  AG085 

manage organisational change.  

5. That a survey of staff attitudes be undertaken at least every 12 months 

 

Page 56



  AG085 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME  

The engagement and performance of the Council’s workforce is critical to the 
delivery of all outcomes set out in the Council Plan.    

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

None. The survey was undertaken ‘in-house’ so no additional budget was 
required and there are no financial implications from the proposed 
recommendations  

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

None. 

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

Employees are critical to the delivery of the council’s services and priorities 
and monitoring and reporting on employee attitudes enables enhanced 
employee engagement and performance. 

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS 

None.  

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

The results have been discussed by senior management, the Portfolio Holder, 
Unison and the Staff Forum.  Colleagues have been made aware of the 
results of the EAS through an article in City Voice and further opportunity to 
discuss the results with managers and team leaders will follow.  

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

None. 

8 PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY  

This was an internal survey.  An equality impact assessment was completed 
and indicated the survey did not impact on any group with protected 
characteristics.  

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

This raw data from individual employees was subject to the council’s data 
protection controls. The results published are anonymised and therefore can 
have no impact on an individual’s privacy rights under data protection law.  

 
 
 

Page 57



  AG085 

 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT  

 

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 

Financial Exposure 

Low employee 

engagement leading to 

high staff turnover and 

increased recruitment and 

agency costs.  

Ongoing employee 

attitude and engagement 

monitoring to enable early 

identification and 

remedial action to avoid 

retention difficulties. 

Promotion of the council 

as an employer of choice. 

Exposure to challenge 

Spend of public money on 

an internal survey. 

Survey conducted in-

house to minimise cost. 

Positive results from 

survey can be used in 

recruitment materials. 

Reputation 

Failure to deliver public 

services and the Council 

Plan due to reduced 

workforce capacity, 

leading to public criticism 

and/or adverse local 

media coverage. 

Ongoing employee 

attitude and engagement 

monitoring to enable early 

identification and 

remedial action where 

retention difficulties could 

impact on the Council’s 

ability to deliver public 

services and the Council 

Plan. 

Identify and implement 

targeted employment 

initiatives and actions to 

increase employee 

engagement and 

minimise staff turnover. 

 

Promote the council as an 

employer of choice. 

Achievement of outcome 

Low employee 

engagement leading to 

poor performance and 

high recruitment & 

retention difficulties. 

Annual employee attitude 

survey to monitor trends 

and identify and address 

potential issues. 

Early identification of 

emerging negative 

attitudes to inform timely 

initiatives and actions to 

avoid these becoming 

business critical. 

 
 
11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

11.1 The Council currently has 431 staff (headcount) and has routinely undertaken 
staff surveys in different forms. This Employee Attitude Survey was conducted 
internally over a 4 week period (13 June to 8 July 2022) and achieved a 
participation rate of 67% which is considered good by industry standards.  

11.2 The survey was hosted on ‘Citizen Space, a digital platform widely used 
across the public sector for the design, publication, management and analysis 
of consultation activity.  All staff received a link to the survey via their work 
email address and were able to complete the survey during working time. HR 
would have provided the survey in an alternative format where requested. 

11.3 The survey asked employees to consider 14 statements and indicate if they 
strongly agree; agree; neither agree or disagree; disagree; or strongly 
disagree.  One of the features of the results is the number of employees who 
‘strongly agree’ with statements. However, for convenience this report will 

Page 58



  AG085 

 

combine the ‘strongly agree’ and ‘agree’ to give the percentage of positive 
comments. 

A summary of the results is attached at Appendix 1. 

11.4 In all internal staff surveys, colleagues are asked to indicate which service 
area they work in. This allows results to be viewed by service area to see if 
one area has significantly different results (or levels of participation) to the 
average for the council. However, for the 2022 survey, the participation rates 
and responses were similar for all service areas.  

11.5 The council has historically undertaken in depth biennial staff surveys.  The 
last survey was conducted in 2018 during a period of organisational change. 
At that time greater demographic data was requested but this carries the risk 
that employees might suspect that their individual results are not anonymous 
and confidential. Adding too many ‘tell me about you’ questions can increase 
this risk and reduce the participation rate. On balance, there was considered 
to be limited added value to ask for additional personal data for a temperature 
check survey.  
 

11.6  A summary of the key headlines is provided below: 

- High participation rate by industry standards at 67%. 

- Employee engagement is high as indicated by scores above 60% for 
statements about enjoying working for the council, pride in the council and 
recommending the council as a good place to work. 

- The majority of staff intend to remain with the council and expected 
turnover is within healthy levels. 

- Staff are being provided with the equipment and the training and 
development they need to perform their roles. 

- Staff positively scored the council’s commitment to equality and health and 
safety. 

- The positive culture at the council as indicated by high scores for staff 
wellbeing, performance and team working. 

- Employees generally understand the top priorities for the council and for 
their service areas. 

11.7  The statements in the survey can be grouped together under the headings: 
employee engagement, a good working environment; the working 
relationships that allow employees to perform effectively; and how 
involved employees feel in the priorities of their service and the council 
as a whole. 

Employee engagement 

11.8 The statements about enjoying working for the council; pride in the council; 
and recommending the council as a good place to work are based on a 
concept called “employee engagement”. Employee engagement is high 
when most employees willingly engage in discretionary effort at work. This 
means ‘going the extra mile’ for colleagues and/or customers because they 

Page 59



  AG085 

 

want to rather than because they feel forced to do so. 

11.9 Research published by MacLeod and Clarke (‘Engaging for Success’) 
showed that organisations with high employee engagement also enjoyed 
high levels of performance and profitability and lower levels of sickness and 
grievances. Therefore, it is good news that the council scored highly on 
these statements: 79% positive response for “I enjoy working at the council”; 
61% positive response for “I would recommend the council as a great place 
to work to my family and friends”; and, 71% positive response for “I am 
proud to work for the council”. 

11.10 The public sector faces considerable challenges in attracting and retaining 
staff and the results of the key question about retention was encouraging.  
Unhappy employees are likely to be looking for other jobs and don’t intend 
to stay with their current employer for longer than necessary which is why 
most employee attitude surveys will have a statement about employee 
intentions in this area.  

The good news for the council is that 69% of employees gave a positive 
response to “I will still be working at the council in 12 months’ time”.  Just 
under 10% of employees do not see themselves working for the council in 
12 months’ time; which is understandable as around 10% is considered a 
healthy level of turnover for any organisation.  

Working Environment 

11.11 Turning to a good working environment, the policies that an employee might 
expect to see in a modern high performing organisation are training and 
development; equality and diversity; health and safety; and provision of good 
quality equipment.  

11.12 A positive response rate of 71% was recorded for “I am able to get the training 
and development I need at work”, However, 12% disagreed and HR will 
encourage line managers to respond to requests from their employees for 
development in a timely manner (even if the answer is no for valid reasons).  

11.13 “The council is committed to ensuring equality at work for all its employees” 
received a 69% positive response. However 23% were unsure and ‘neither 
agreed nor disagreed’ which suggests that the council’s policy and actions on 
equality, diversity and inclusion could usefully receive more publicity.  

11.14 The appointment of a dedicated Corporate Health and Safety Adviser is 
having a positive impact with a 67% positive response to “the council takes the 
health and safety of its employees seriously”.  The corporate health and safety 
group also ensures risk assessments and other policies are reviewed, provides 
opportunity for key messages to be disseminated and concerns raised. 

11.15 The council ensured employees had the right equipment for working from 
home during the pandemic and adjustments have been made to in office 
equipment as colleagues return to the office on a hybrid arrangement. The 
employees’ response to “I have the equipment I need to be successful in my 
work” is encouraging at 73% positive.  

Page 60



  AG085 

 

Working relationships 

11.16 Turning next to the working relationships that allow employees to perform 
effectively, the HR literature shows that people are motivated to do their very 
best work if they have good working relationships with their colleagues and 
especially their line manager.  

11.17 “My manager cares about me as a person” might possibly be the most 
important question in the whole survey. The positive response of 86% is worth 
breaking down into ‘strongly agree’ and ‘agree’ as it is such a fantastic 
response from employees. 45% of employees strongly agree; and another 41% 
agree with this statement. This highlights the positive culture at the council 
where the well-being of employees is regularly discussed by managers.  

11.18 A parallel statement is “my line manager gives me regular feedback on my 
performance at work”. This received a 77% positive response from employees. 

11.19 The other dimension of satisfaction at work is the working relationships 
employees enjoy with their colleagues. The positive response for “The 
colleagues in my team are supportive and friendly” was very high at 94%, with 
56% strongly agreeing with this statement. In light of the separation of teams 
by the pandemic this a very pleasing result.  

Council and service priorities 

11.20 Turning finally to how involved employees feel in the priorities of their service 
and the council as a whole: employees need to understand what the 
organisation is trying to achieve; how they fit into that journey; and notice the 
communications that keep them informed of progress.  

11.21 72% of employees responded positively to “I understand the top priorities of 
Winchester City Council” and 92% responded positively to “I understand the 
key objectives of my service”. It is not unusual for employees to know and care 
more about their immediate objectives than the higher priorities of the overall 
organisation.  

11.22 The final statement to consider is “I would say that changes at work are 
communicated to employees quickly and clearly”. Compared to the rest of the 
survey this statement received a low positive response of 44% and a 24% 
negative response (the remainder were ‘neither agree nor disagree’).  

11.23 Employees rated the level and frequency of communications from senior 
managers higher during the pandemic than before Covid-19.  All staff briefings, 
team meetings and 121s have continued to be held regularly as they were 
during lockdown, however, it is acknowledged that confirmation of return to the 
office working arrangements was unavoidably delayed due to the sudden re-
emergence of infection and it may be this delay which has reduced the scores.  
Further discussion with the Staff Forum and Unison will take place to establish 
which, if any, areas need to be addressed to further staff engagement. 

11.24 The survey also included a free text section to provide employees with the 
opportunity to add any comments they wished to make and a summary of the 

Page 61



  AG085 

 

comments received is attached at Appendix 2.  Some matters are specific and 
are being addressed on an individual level.  

12. RELATED MATTERS 

12.1 Members on the A&G committee asked HR for an overview of the benefits 
the council offers to attract candidates to jobs at the council.  
 

12.2 The benefits offered to employees at WCC are as follows 

 Employer paid health care cash plan scheme. 

 Cycle to Work and Green Car Benefit salary sacrifice schemes 

 Up to 32 days annual leave per year (more than the Green Book 
minimum). 

 Flexible working arrangements. 

 Hybrid Working Policy allowing most employees to work from home 
for up to 50% of their working hours.  

 Up to 13 days additional flexi leave per year (subject to operational 
requirements) where the employee has built up enough hours. 

 Option to voluntarily buy up to five days additional annual leave. 

 Free park and ride scheme for all employees.  

 Membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme. 

 Confidential Employee Advice and Support Programme. 

 Employee retail and shopping discounts. 

 Season Ticket loans. 

 Excellent central location. 

 Support for continuous professional development. 
 

12.3 A full review of the employment package on offer for job roles, informed by 
extensive benchmarking against neighbouring authorities, was undertaken 
in 2018/19.  This included a full review of salaries and grades and employee 
benefits in addition to salary. 

12.4 One of the key employee benefits to be introduced at that time was an 
employer paid health care cash plan.  The health plan provides cash back 
on a range of everyday health care treatments, encouraging employees to 
proactively manage their health and wellbeing.  It also offers an employee 
counselling line and on-line health and wellbeing resources. 

12.5 The health plan is a voluntary benefit and not routinely offered by other 
councils.  It is particularly salient given the current cost of living crisis and at 
a time when preventative treatments be easily foregone or unexpected 
health care costs could have significant financial impact.  Anecdotal 
evidence shows this this is a highly valued employee benefit. 

12.6 A number of changes to annual leave were also introduced at that time: 

- Annual leave allowances were benchmarked/reviewed and 
increased. 

- Christmas closure, part covered by annual leave.  The council 
operates an emergency out of office service and senior managers 

Page 62



  AG085 

 

are on-call during this time. 

- ‘Core’ hours were removed to enable staff to maximise work/life 
balance although there is a requirement for all teams to cover full 
‘normal’ office hours. 

12.7 The benefits available to employees clearly demonstrates the council’s 
commitment to, and investment in, employee wellbeing and to making the 
council an ‘employer of choice’.  However, it is important the council 
continues to be competitive on pay compared to other local councils.  Initial 
benchmarking has indicated the council is broadly comparable to other 
district councils, although for some specific roles it is less competitive.  With 
current economic pressures affecting many of our residents, further work to 
understand our market position will be undertaken. 

 
13. NEXT STEPS 

13.1 Overall the council has received positive feedback as an employer and 
offers a strong range of benefits.  However, there is no room for 
complacency and a continuous dialogue with staff is essential to ensure 
everyone feels part of the council team.  

13.2 To assist with this, a refresh of the appraisal form will be undertaken and 
support given to managers to ensure that the pivotal annual conversations 
with staff are beneficial in identifying key areas of activity over the coming 
year and in identifying training and development needs to ensure staff have 
the skills they need to perform their roles.  Managers will continue to be 
encouraged to supplement this with regular 1 to 1s throughout the year. 

13.3 A strong and positive relationship exists with the Union and regular 
meetings will continue.  As not all staff are members of Unison, the Staff 
Forum provides a useful sounding board for all staff to raise issues. 

13.4 Further focus needs to be given to the equality, diversity an inclusiveness 
agenda and this will be incorporated into the work being led by Cllr Becker 
in her role as Cabinet Member for Inclusion and Engagement.  Attention will 
also be given to ensuring equality in the council’s internal processes. 

13.5 As previously mentioned in 11.23, further discussion with the Staff Forum 
and Unison will take place to establish which, if any, areas need to be 
addressed to further staff engagement. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

AG079 Workforce Report 2021/22, 29 June 2022 

Other Background Documents:- 

None 

Page 63



  AG085 

 

APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1 – Employee Attitude Survey June 2022 – summary of results 

Appendix 2 - Summary of employee comments added to survey response 
 

 

  

Page 64



  AG085 

 

Appendix 1 
 

Employee Attitude Survey June 2022 – summary of results 
 
 

1: I enjoy my work at the council: 
 

 
 
 

2: I will still be working at the council in 12 months’ time: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 50 100 150 200

Disagree

Neither agree nor disagree

Agree

Strongly agree

Number of responses 

0 50 100 150

Strongly disagree

Disagree

Neither agree nor disagree

Agree

Strongly agree

Number of responses 

Page 65



  AG085 

 

3: I would recommend the council as a great place to work to my family and friends: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

4: I am proud to work for the council: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 50 100 150

Strongly disagree

Disagree

Neither agree nor disagree

Agree

Strongly agree

Number of responses 

0 50 100 150 200

Strongly disagree

Disagree

Neither agree nor disagree

Agree

Strongly agree

Number of responses 

Page 66



  AG085 

 

5: I am able to get the training and development I need to be successful at work: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

6: I have the equipment I need to be successful at my work: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

0 50 100 150 200

Strongly disagree

Disagree

Neither agree nor disagree

Agree

Strongly agree

Number of responses 

0 50 100 150 200

Strongly disagree

Disagree

Neither agree nor disagree

Agree

Strongly agree

Number of responses 

Page 67



  AG085 

 

7: My line manager gives me regular feedback on my performance at work: 
 

 
 

 
 

8: My line manager cares about me as a person: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 50 100 150

Strongly disagree

Disagree

Neither agree nor disagree

Agree

Strongly agree

Number of responses 

0 50 100 150

Strongly disagree

Disagree

Neither agree nor disagree

Agree

Strongly agree

Number of responses 

Page 68



  AG085 

 

9: The colleagues in my team are supportive and friendly: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

10: The council takes the health and well-being of its employees seriously: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 50 100 150 200

Strongly disagree

Neither agree nor disagree

Agree

Strongly agree

Number of responses 

0 50 100 150

Strongly disagree

Disagree

Neither agree nor disagree

Agree

Strongly agree

Number of responses 

Page 69



  AG085 

 

11: The council is committed to ensuring equality at work for all its employees: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

12: I understand the key objectives of my service: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 50 100 150

Strongly disagree

Disagree

Neither agree nor disagree

Agree

Strongly agree

Number of responses 

0 50 100 150 200

Disagree

Neither agree nor disagree

Agree

Strongly agree

Number of responses 

Page 70



  AG085 

 

13: I understand the top priorities for Winchester City Council: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

14: I would say that changes at work are communicated to employees quickly and 
clearly: 
 

 
 

  

0 50 100 150 200

Strongly disagree

Disagree

Neither agree nor disagree

Agree

Strongly agree

Number of responses 

0 50 100 150

Strongly disagree

Disagree

Neither agree nor disagree

Agree

Strongly agree

Number of responses 

Page 71



  AG085 

 

Appendix 2 
 

Summary of employee comments added to survey response 
 
287 employees completed the survey. 
 
82 employees took the time to add a written comment. 
 
All the written comments have been examined in detail by HR. 
 
The text of the comments sometimes allow the respondent to be identified and for this reason they are 
not published in full in this report.  

 
31% of employees providing a comment wanted to take the opportunity to suggest 
ways in which the work they do, or their working environment, could be improved. 
These comments have been discussed by HR and managers in general terms.   
 
The main points were: 

 more rooms for MS Teams meetings;  

 that steps should be taken to stop wasting time on vexatious complainants; 

 that the council is too risk adverse;  

 ideas for more communications between services; 

 need for more storage space;  

 use new IT apps to help communications;  

 need fewer emails and more phone calls; 

 make decisions more swiftly; 

 remove duplication in processes 

 

45% of employees providing a comments wanted to say that while they were 
generally content with their working lives there were some aspects that could be 
improved. The main issues were: 

 they missed having their own desk and storage areas at work;  

 pay should be higher; 

 their team is not fully staffed;  

 managers are not always consistent; 

 communications could be better; 

 they wanted to work from home all of their time in future;  

 they don’t get on with all their work colleagues 

 

16% of employees providing a comment wanted to articulate their unhappiness with 
an aspect of their working lives.  There were a variety of issues, some already known 
to HR.  

 

8% of employees providing a comment wanted to send in positive comments like: 
“great organisation to work for”. 
 

Page 72



  
 

AG087 
AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

REPORT TITLE: RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY – REVIEW 
 
10 NOVEMBER 2022 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: CLLR POWER – CABINET MEMBER FOR 
FINANCE AND VALUE  

Contact Officer: Liz Keys    Tel No: 01962 848 226  

Email: lkeys@winchester.gov.uk    

WARD(S):  ALL 
 
 

 

 

 
PURPOSE 

To provide members of the Audit and Governance Committee with a summary 
overview of the actions resulting from the Risk Management Training session that 
was facilitated for Members of the Committee and Cabinet in July 2022. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That the Audit and Governance Committee notes the content of the report. 

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 10

mailto:lkeys@winchester.gov.uk


  AG087 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1. COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME 

1.1 Effective use of risk management supports the council’s management of 
threats and opportunities to achieve the priorities included in the Council Plan 
2020-25.  

2. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 None directly as a result of this report. However, where there is a potential 
increase in risk likelihood or impact identified, additional spend may be 
required to manage those risks properly and adequately. Budget approval 
would be subject to the processes set out in the council’s Financial Procedure 
Rules. 

2.2 Robust risk management can have a positive impact on the Council’s annual 
insurance renewal premiums as insurers will treat this positively. 

3. LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 The council’s Risk Management Policy is an important element of the 
overarching governance framework ensuring that the council has a robust 
process for evaluating risks as part of the decision-making process. 

3.2 The Council’s Constitution sets the terms of reference for the Audit and 
Governance Committee. In relation to risk management the terms of 
reference state that the Committee’s function is to: 

 Overview the Council’s risk management arrangements and provide 
independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management 
framework. 

 Seek assurance that action is being taken on risk-related issues 
identified by auditors and inspectors. 

 
3.3 Under the Constitution, the responsibility for risk management is delegated to 

the Chief Executive in liaison with the Section 151 Officer. The responsibility 
for maintaining and developing the Council’s Risk Management Policy is 
delegated to the Section 151 Officer  

3.4 3.2 There are no direct procurement considerations arising from this report. 

4. WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 Management of risk is an integral part of service delivery. Corporate Heads of 
Service are required to review operational risk registers with their 
management teams and specific project risk registers are established and 
maintained. 

Page 74



  AG087 
 

 

 

4.2 Delivery of the Risk Management Strategy Review actions will be via existing 
resources. 

5. PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 None.  

6. CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 Consultation on the content of the report has been undertaken with the 
Cabinet Member for Finance and Value and Executive Leadership Board 
(ELB). 

7. ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 None directly as a result of this report. However, where there is an expected 
increase in environmental risk likelihood or impact, additional measures to 
manage those risks would be identified in the relevant business case before 
being approved. 

8. PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY 

8.1 There are no direct PSED issues arising from the content of this report. 

 
9. DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 None required. 

10. RISK MANAGEMENT  

 

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 

Financial Exposure None None 

Exposure to challenge - 

ensuring that the council 

has robust risk 

management in place 

protects the council from 

Legal challenges 

Ensure that the risk 

management policy is up 

to date, reviewed 

regularly and adhered to 

and has an 

accompanying action plan 

that is monitored 

regularly. 

Identify and mitigate 

against risk which may 

enhance the council’s 

reputation 

Innovation – not realised The Risk Management 

Appetite allows for 

decisions taken to 

incorporate opportunities 

for innovation within clear 

parameters. 

The Risk Management 

Appetite is specific to the 

different Council Plan 

priorities and an updated 

Report Template will 

ensure clearer 

assessment against 

Page 75



  AG087 
 

 

 

these. 

Reputation - ensuring that 

the council has in place 

robust arrangements to 

manage its risks 

The council has clear 

principles and 

arrangements to manage 

risk set out in the Risk 

Management Policy.  The 

actions in this report will 

enhance effective risk 

management. 

A robust Risk 

Management Policy 

supports the council to 

identify, assess and 

manage its risks in a 

consistent and effective 

Property None None 

Community Support None None 

Timescales None None 

Project capacity None None 

Other None None 

 
 

11. SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

Background and Introduction 

11.1 Risk management is about providing assurance by being ‘risk aware’. Risk is 
ever present in everything that we do and some risk taking is inevitable if the 
council is to achieve its objectives. Risk management is about making the 
most of opportunities when they arise and achieving objectives once those 
decisions are made. By being ‘risk aware’ the council is better placed to avoid 
threats and take advantage of opportunities. 

11.2 The council’s current overall risk appetite is defined as Moderate (tending always 
towards exposure to only modest levels of risk in order to achieve acceptable 
outcomes).  This means the council remains open to innovative ways of working 
and to pursue options that offer potentially substantial rewards, despite also 
having greater level of risks. However, the council’s preference is for safe 
delivery options which have a lower degree of risk, especially for those services 
required by statute. 

11.3 On 14 July 2022 a workshop on ‘Risk and its Management’ facilitated by Tilia 
Solutions was delivered to Members of Audit and Governance Committee and 
Cabinet. 

11.4 At this session, the facilitator commented on the quality of the council’s Risk 
Management Policy and alignment to best practice, but we cannot stand on 
our laurels and need to ensure that we continue to manage risk in a 
proportionate way as pragmatically and effectively as possible. A number of 
actions were discussed to which could enhance the current arrangements and 
ensure continued best practice. 

Page 76



  AG087 
 

 

 

11.5 Subsequent to the session, at the Audit and Governance meeting on 21 July 
2022, Cllr Cutler proposed that an additional item be added to the next 
(September) meeting to build on the discussions held.   

11.6 This report gives an overview of the workshop and the resulting actions for 
further discussion and exploration. 

11.7 In addition, the next annual review of the Risk Management Policy will be 
brought to this Committee in Q4 22/23. 

12. Rick Management Roles and Responsibilities 

12.1 Roles and responsibilities are set out in the current Risk Management Policy 
and are summarised below: 

Members 

 Understand the strategic objectives and risks that the council faces and 
how those risks are managed 

Cabinet 

 Ensure effective arrangements are in place and kept up to date 

 Approve the Risk Management Policy and Risk Appetite 

 Monitor risk management and internal control arrangements 

 Ensure effectiveness of the risk management & internal control 
framework 

Audit & Governance Committee 

 Provide independent assurance on the adequacy of the risk 
management framework and internal control environment. Monitor the 
effective development and operation of risk management in the council 
as part of Governance Monitoring arrangements 

Executive Leadership Board 

 Promote effective risk management and ensure it is embedded in the 
culture of the council 

12.2 The workshop for Members covered: 

 Risk and its management at WCC - A brief introduction to the approach 

 Roles and responsibilities in relation to risk - obtaining assurance on 
risk 

Page 77



  AG087 
 

 

 

 Using the risk appetite statement to make decisions - using risk to 
inform actions 

 

Outcome of Risk Management Workshop: 

12.3 The below formed the basis of the main discussions for further consideration 
and exploration: 

 The current Corporate Risk Register is lacking a ‘so what’ column.  
This could identify any further actions needed and give a ‘target’ risk 
score (in addition to the inherent and residual risk scores).  
Alternatively, if we are prepared to tolerate the residual risk and no 
further actions are needed, this could be noted in this new column.  Do 
the actions reduce the target risk score?   If not, why are we doing it?  
Could anything further be done? 

  The current Risk Register set out ‘causes’ (what might go wrong) but 
could these be more clearly described?  Causes should be more than 
just ‘lack of’ – why is there a lack? What is the underlying cause? 

 The Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) three lines of defence model 
quoted in the Risk Management Policy remains valid but this has been 
updated recently in the HM Treasury Framework.  The Risk 
Management Policy should be updated to reflect this. 

 The council doesn’t currently have an assurance map to support the 
three lines of defence model. Consideration should be given to the 
benefits of an assurance map to: 

o evidence risk management plans are delivering as expected 

o assess how well risks are being managed 

o ensure that opportunities are delivered 

o establish how efficient we are in managing our risks 

 Can we better align the risk levels to the risk appetite levels?  

 Update the Committee Report template to add a risk score against the 
risk appraisal table so that there can be an assessment of whether the 
risk is within appetite or not, and a summary of if not, why this is 
deemed to be acceptable 

 Subsequent to the workshop, ELB requested refresher Risk  
management training for them to be arranged. 

Conclusion 

Page 78



  AG087 
 

 

 

12.4 An Action Plan will be developed based on the above.  This will be owned by 
the s151 Officer and monitored by ELB as part of their role in ensuring the 
Risk Management is embedded in the culture of the council and progress 
reported to A&G and Cabinet via the quarterly Governance report.  

13. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

To not take forward the actions identified as a result of the Risk Management 
workshop – this has been discounted as we need to ensure that our Risk 
Management continues to be as effective as possible particularly in the 
current climate of geo-political and financial uncertainty. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Risk Management Policy 2022/23 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

None 

Other Background Documents:- 

None 

 APPENDICES: 

None 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 79

http://sharepoint/Intranet/HRHub/InsuranceRisk/Shared%20Documents/Risk%20Management%20Policy%202022-23%20v1.0.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

AG086 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

REPORT TITLE: Q1 AND Q2 GOVERNANCE MONITORING 
 
10 NOVEMBER 2022 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: CLLR POWER – CABINET MEMBER FOR 
FINANCE AND VALUE  

Contact Officer:  Richard Botham Tel No: 01962 848 421 Email 
rbotham@winchester.gov.uk  

WARD(S):  ALL 
 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

To provide members of the Audit and Governance Committee with a summary 
overview of the key issues in respect of governance during the first and second 
quarter of the 2022/23 financial year. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That the Audit and Governance Committee notes the content of the report, the 

progress against the internal audit management actions and raises any issues 

with the cabinet member. 

 

Page 81

Agenda Item 11



  AG086 
 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME 

1.1 This summary document supports the council to be open and transparent by 
reporting the effectiveness of its governance framework and highlighting 
areas of weakness or issues of concern 

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 There are no financial implications. 

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no legal or procurement implications arising from the content of this 
report. 

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 None. 

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 None.  

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 Consultation on the content of the report has been undertaken the Cabinet 
member for Finance and Value and with members of the Executive 
Leadership Board (ELB) and Corporate Heads of Service. Owners of actions 
included in the internal audit reports that are referred to in this report have 
provided updates on the progress achieved against the agreed management 
actions. 

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 None. 

8 PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY 

8.1 None arising from the content of the report, although officers will need to 
consider the council’s Public Sector Equality Duty and if required complete an 
Equality Impact Assessment on any specific recommendations or future 
decisions to be made. This report is not making any decisions and is for 
noting and raising issues only. 

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 None required. 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT 

Page 82



  AG086 
 

 

10.1 This report presents a summary update on how the council is performing 
against the governance processes and procedures that are in place and set 
out in the Risk Management Policy 2022/23 and Local Code of Corporate 
Governance. Independent assurance provided by the council’s internal and 
external auditors evidence where there are weaknesses in the council’s 
governance arrangements and are highlighted in this report.  Members should 
note the related agenda item at this meeting ‘Risk Management Strategy – 
Review AG087.’ 

11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

11.1 This report sets out the summary information in respect of the first quarter of 
the 2022/23 financial year concerning governance.  

Annual Governance Statement  

11.2 Progress against the actions included in the 2021/22 Annual Governance 
Statement is included in appendix 1 to this report.  

Declarations of gifts and hospitality  

11.3 During the period of 1 April 2022 to 30 June 2022 there was the following 
declaration of gifts and hospitality made by officers in accordance with the 
policy: 

 20 May 2022: 4 boxes of chocolates and 1 tin of biscuits 

11.4 During the period 1 July 2022 to 30 September 2022 there were the following  

 27 July 2022: A bunch of flowers, tin of biscuits and card 

 26 August 2022: A bunch of flowers, box of biscuits and card 

11.5 Members regularly update their register of interest forms and during the 
period of 1 July 2022 to 30 September 2022 the following declaration of gifts 
or hospitality over the value of £50 was recorded in accordance with the 
policy: 

 11 August 2022: Day ticket to ‘Foodies Festival’ 

11.6 There were no declarations by members recorded during the period 1 April 
2022 to 30 June 2022. 

12 INTERNAL AUDIT ASSURANCE REPORTS 

12.1 The graph below shows the assurance levels of the completed internal audits 
that were included in the audit plans in the years 2017/18 to the current year; 
2022/23. 

Page 83



  AG086 
 

 

 

12.2 There have been no published audit reports that concluded with a ‘no 
assurance’ opinion. 

12.3 Since the Q4 21/22 Governance Monitoring report was presented to Audit and 
Governance Committee on 29 June 2022 there has been five internal audit 
reports finalised and issued before the 30 September: 

 IT incident and problem management (reasonable assurance) 

 Human Resources – staff benefits (reasonable assurance) 

 Housing leasehold management (reasonable assurance) 

 Cyber Security (reasonable assurance) 

 Programme and Project Management (reasonable assurance) 

Internal Audit Management Tracking 

12.4 Progress against the management actions included in the internal audit 
reports are regularly reviewed by corporate heads of service, service leads 
and Executive Leadership Board (ELB). 

12.5 A summary table showing the status of these actions is reported on a 
quarterly basis. These management actions are kept under regular review to 
assess where actions might become superseded or obsolete due to external 
or internal factors. 

12.6 To assist member’s understanding an additional narrative is included in the 
table to provide a brief explanation of the progress being made against the 
overdue audit actions and the reasons for the delay in completion.  

Page 84



  AG086 
 

 

12.7 There are currently 18 overdue audit actions with 5 being high priority. This is 
one action more than was reported as overdue at the last meeting of the 
committee on 29 June 2022.  

 

Page 85



  AG086 
 

 

 

Audit 
Review 

Report 
Date 

Audit 
Sponsor 

Assurance 
Opinion 

Management Actions 

(‘High Priority’) 

Reported Not 
Accepted 

Pending Cleared Overdue LOW MEDIUM HIGH 

Partnerships   09/09/20   SDR    Limited          12 (2)            0 (0)         0 (0)         7 (2)             5 (0) 
19/20  

 

Progress update: Five overdue actions remain and these are being progressed by the Corporate Head of 
Economy and Community.   

The creation of a partnership performance reporting framework aligned to the Council Plan priorities and update of 
the partnership register including an annual assessment as to continued benefit / appropriateness will be reviewed 
in 2022/23 financial year.  

 

5 
 

Building  
Control         24/09/20     SDR   Reasonable   10 (0)           0 (0)          2 (0)           7 (0)          1 (0) 

 

Progress update: One overdue outstanding action relating to carrying out a survey relating to KPI 06 which is due 
to reduced management staffing within Building Control Team. This will be completed when staffing levels allow.   

 

 

1 
 

Health and   22/10/20     SDR    Reasonable   17 (4)          0 (0)          0 (0)          16 (3)          1 (1) 
Safety          

 

Progress update: Good progress has been made by the Health and Safety Advisor with a further 4 actions having 
been completed since the last meeting of this committee on 29 June 2022.  

Further information is given in section 12 below 

 

 

 

      1 

P
age 86



  AG086 
 

 

Audit 
Review 

Report 
Date 

Audit 
Sponsor 

Assurance 
Opinion 

Management Actions 

(‘High Priority’) 

Reported Not 
Accepted 

Pending Cleared Overdue LOW MEDIUM HIGH 

Capital Programme & 
Monitoring   18/02/21   SDR    Reasonable         4 (0)          0 (0)          0 (0)         3 (0)               1 (0) 

 

Progress update: The one overdue action relates to the review and updating of the council’s Asset Management 
Plan. The draft Asset Management Strategy will be presented to Cabinet on 14 December for consideration and 
adoption. 

 1  

IT Business Continuity  
& Disaster    
Recovery     06/07/21   SDR     Reasonable       4 (0)          0 (0)           0 (0)         1 (0)               3 (0) 

 

Progress update: There are three overdue actions, of which two relate to the undertaking an exercise to test 
disaster recovery scenarios which has been delayed owing to resources previously diverted to support the council’s 
response to COVID. The third action relates to a review of options for cloud storage which would support IT 
disaster recovery.  

All three actions are actively being progressed with a Business Continuity exercise being planned for November 
2022. 

1 2  

Disabled Facilities  
Grants           21/12/21  SDR          Limited         16 (0)      0 (0)             0 (0)         15 (0)           1 (1) 

 

Progress update:  Work is largely completed in respect of the audit actions and in particular the updating of the 
Disabled Facilities Grants Policy. Following advice from Foundations (The National Body for Home Improvement 
Agencies in England) and advisory body to the government, the DFG procedural element has been stripped out 
and will become a separate document, with the draft DFG Policy 2022 -25 becoming the public facing document. 
The new draft Disabled Facilities Grant Policy 2022-2025 is to be presented to the BHP committee on 29/11/2022  

 

 

  1 

P
age 87



  AG086 
 

 

Audit 
Review 

Report 
Date 

Audit 
Sponsor 

Assurance 
Opinion 

Management Actions 

(‘High Priority’) 

Reported Not 
Accepted 

Pending Cleared Overdue LOW MEDIUM HIGH 

Information Governance - Records 
Retention      03/03/22    SDR         Limited        14 (4)        0 (0)           3 (0)           5 (1)            6 (3)    

 

Progress update: The overdue high priority actions relate to the adoption of an updated Records Retention and 
Disposal policy and the subsequent roll out across the organisation. Further detail is provided in paragraph 12.14. 
below 

1 2 3 

P
age 88



  AG086 
 

 

 

Health & Safety 

12.8 Good progress has been made towards completion of the remaining overdue 
high-priority action (risk assessment reviews), with the majority of service 
areas having completed their reviews. 

12.9 However, in several higher risk service areas, work to complete the reviews 
and identify any changes required, is still ongoing. This includes some 
specialist legally required health risk assessments in Environmental Services, 
which require additional resource to complete. The target for completion of 
this health risk assessment work is end January 2023. 

12.10 Due to the volume and complexity of risk assessments in these higher risk 
service areas, the work to review and fully identify all risk control measures is 
likely to continue until end March 2023. Additional resource has been 
approved to support this work. 

Changes to the health and safety information and guidance on the intranet 
have been prepared and will be communicated to all service leads as soon as 
the new intranet goes live at the end of November and includes a new 
location for all service area risk assessments   

Disabled Facilities Grants 

12.11 Progress against the agreed audit management action points arising from the 
internal audit review of disabled facilities grants is largely compete including 
the reviewing and updating of the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) Policy 
which will become the public front facing document. The draft DFG Policy 
2022-25 is to be presented at the Business and Housing Policy Committee 
meeting on 29 November 2022. 

12.12 The DFG procedures document is also in the process of being updated for 
internal staff usage to ensure that it is aligned with current practices.  

Page 89



  AG086 
 

 

12.13 An update to the list of approved contractors has been completed in liaison 
with Hampshire County Council through a formal tendering and evaluation 
process. As a consequence seven contractors capable of undertaking DFG 
installation work for level access showers and general building works have 
now been appointed.  

Information Governance – Records Retention 2020/21 

12.14 As part of the audit covering Information Governance, the auditor observed 
that it was not possible to confirm when the current Retention and Disposal 
Policy was last updated or approved.  Work has now been completed on 
reviewing and updating the Policy and will be considered at Executive 
Leadership Board for endorsement before the end of December. 

12.15 Work has now commenced on preparing guidance for staff and will be rolled 
out in the early part of 2023.   

Programme and Project Management 

12.16 Included in the Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22, a review was undertaken of 
the council’s programme and project management. The final audit report was 
issued on 16 September 2022 and offered a reasonable assurance. 

12.17 Members should also be aware of the earlier audit review completed in May 
2021 that focussed on arrangements for project reporting to the Programme 
and Capital Strategy Board and offered substantial assurance. 

12.18 The scope of the Programme and Project Management audit was to include 
the overall project management environment/ framework and to review a 
small sample of projects from across all tiers (1-4) from the list of projects 
reported to the Programme and Capital Strategy Board. The review sought to 
establish the methodologies being used to manage projects at different levels 
of profile/ risk, and the level of understanding and consistency in project 
management across the organisation. 

12.19 There were a number of areas assessed where the current controls are 
working well and found to be effective and this is reflected in the reasonable 
assurance opinion.   

12.20 However, the audit review also observed a number of areas where 
programme and project management could be improved including a review of 
the current project management methodology to ensure a consistent 
approach across all projects at all levels. 

12.21 A review of the current programme and project methodology has been 
completed by officers and will be presented to Executive Leadership Board for 
consideration before the end of December. A draft of the document has been 
circulated for review to project managers and their comments have been 
incorporated into the document. 

Page 90



  AG086 
 

 

12.22 Once approved, officers will communicate to all officers who manage projects 
guidance and offer support through the early part of 2023.  

Risk Management 

12.23 The council’s Risk Management Policy 2022/23 sets out a timetable for this 
committee to review the policy and corporate risks (section 11 of the Risk 
Management Policy).  The Corporate Risk Register reviewed is attached at 
Appendix 4.  This was last reviewed by Executive Leadership Board (ELB) on 
14 September 2022. 

12.24 ELB considered that all strategic risks were still relevant and made the 
following updates in Q2: 

a) CR001 – capacity is reduced and some professional areas are finding 
it increasingly challenging to attract good calibre staff.  It was therefore 
considered appropriate to increase the residual likelihood from ‘highly 
unlikely’ to ‘unlikely’ meaning an overall change from a green residual 
risk to an amber.  The controls for this risk are being reviewed 

b) CR003 – the residents’ survey has been carried out in 2022 and the 
current controls were updated to reflect this.  

The risk owner was updated to the Interim Head of Legal Services to 
reflect recent organisational changes 

c) CR004 – Business Continuity plans have been tested and updated in 
2022 and the current controls have been updated to reflect this 

This risk owner was updated to the Chief Executive to reflect recent 
organisational changes 

d) CR006 – the council’s Programme and Capital Board are reviewing the 

corporate approach to partnership working and this corporate risk will be 
updated in due  

e) CR007 – to reflect the current turbulent economic situation, the 
likelihood was raised from ‘unlikely’ to ‘likely’ resulting in an overall 
change of the residual risk from amber to red. 

An additional control of a Strategic Budget review mid-year 22/23 was 
added. 

f) CR008 – the following were added to the ‘what night go wrong’ (cause) 
column;   

 Increasing infrastructure demands on new sites; 

 Higher build costs;  

 Increasing inflation and interest rates affecting supply 
 

Page 91



  AG086 
 

 

Increasing homelessness was added to the ‘what might happen’ 
(consequence column) and cost benchmarking added as an additional 
control. 

 

g) CR009 – This risk owner was updated to the Corporate Head of 
Finance to reflect recent organisational changes 

Given the national cyber security threat it was felt that the residual 
likelihood had increased from ‘highly unlikely’ to ‘unlikely’ resulting in 
an overall change of the residual risk from green to amber.  ELB noted 
that whilst cyber insurance is currently in place, this may be 
unaffordable at the next renewal in early November. 

h) CR010 – increased risk of droughts was added to the ‘what will 
consequence column 

12.25 Unless stated above, the original and residual risk ratings were considered to 
be appropriate and the causes, consequences and controls for each risk 
sufficient at the time of the review. 

12.26 In terms of potential new and emerging risks, the Institute of Risk 
Management (IRM) have highlighted five key areas for 2022: 

 Geopolitical uncertainty and instability 

 Inflation 

 The mixed pace of global post-pandemic recovery 

 The changed relationship with the workforce 

 Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) 

These key areas are included within the Corporate Risk Register and ELB 

and Corporate Heads of Service continue to manage and monitor Strategic 

and Operational risks being cognisant of the above. 

 

12.27 A new risk related to the national security threat was considered but not 
deemed necessary at the current time. 

12.28 Of the 76 Operational Risks managed by corporate heads of service, 4 of 
these were presented to ELB in Q1 for review as residual ‘red’ risks.  ELB 
considered that these did not need escalating to the Corporate Risk Register 
at and that the controls in place were sufficient and proportionate but these 
continue to be monitored closely. 

12.29 An externally facilitated risk management workshop for members of Cabinet 
and Audit and Governance Committee took place on 14 July 2022. Please 
see elsewhere on this committee’s agenda report AG087 - Risk Management 
Strategy – Review’ which includes the resulting action areas from this 
workshop.  ELB have also requested that they have refresher risk 

Page 92



  AG086 
 

 

management training added to the Risk Management Strategy Review Action 
Plan and this will be arranged. 

Code of Conduct Complaints 

12.30 The Audit and Governance Committee has two sub-committees including the 
Standards Sub-Committee, whose purpose is to consider investigation 
reports, in respect of Code of Conduct Complaints, that have been referred to 
it by the Monitoring Officer. 

12.31 Appendix 3 provides brief details of the Code of Conduct complaints received, 
in progress and closed and where enquiries have been made to the Office of 
the Monitoring Officer. 

13 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

13.1 None 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

AG078 Governance Monitoring Quarterly update Q1 2021/22, 29 June 2022 

Other Background Documents:- 

None. 

APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1 – Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 – progress update 

Appendix 2 – Internal Audit Progress Report 

Appendix 3 – Code of Conduct complaints 

Appendix 4 – Corporate Risk Register

Page 93



  AG086 
Appendix 1 

 
 

 

Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 – Action Plan update – June 2022 

No. Issue Actions Progress Update Lead Officer Target Date Current Status 

1. Records Retention and 
Disposal – ensuring that 
the Records Retention 
and Disposal Policy and 
Schedule are refreshed 
and embedded into the 
organisation so that 
records are stored in 
accordance with the 
agreed schedule. 

Review and update 
Retention and Disposal 
Policy and Schedule, 
endorsed by ELB and 
agreed roll-out plan 

Refresh of Retention and 
Disposal Policy completed 
and report for ELB 
consideration being prepared.  

Senior Policy and 
Programme Manager 

July 2022 In progress 

Map and align retention 
schedule to content/ 
indexing and values in 
business systems 

Retention schedule being 
considered in line with 
implementation of upgrade to 
SharePoint and Microsoft 365. 

Senior Policy and 
Programme Manager/ 
Corporate Heads of 
Service 

October 2022 In progress 

Retention schedule 
implementation and 
application across business 
systems 

Implementation of retention 
schedule to applied to 
upgrade of SharePoint due to 
take place early in 2023.  

Senior Policy and 
Programme Manager/ 
Head of IT 

March 2023 In progress 

2. Programme and 
Project Management – 
ensuring consistency in 
the approach and 
methodology across the 
council for managing and 
delivering successful 
programmes and 
projects 

Agree a corporate project 
management approach and 
methodology that defines 
the existing framework 

Programme and project 
methodology reviewed and 
updated and draft to be 
considered at Executive 
Leadership Board (ELB) in 
December. 

Senior Policy and 
Programme Manager 

July 2022 In progress 

Publish guidance for all 
project managers to that 
explains the methodology to 
support the successful 
management and delivery 
of projects 

Guidance and support given 
to project managers in line 
with the revised methodology 
which will be published on the 
intranet once approved by 
Executive Leadership Board. 

Senior Policy and 
Programme Manager 

August 2022 In progress 

P
age 94



  AG086 
Appendix 1 

 
 

 

No. Issue Actions Progress Update Lead Officer Target Date Current Status 

Arrange and hold training 
events to embed the 
methodology throughout the 
council 

Training programme under 
development and will be 
provided early 2023 

Senior Policy and 
Programme Manager 

December 2022 In progress 

3. 

 

Disabled Facilities 
Grants – ensuring the 
operational procedures 
and policy meet statutory 
requirements and roles 
and responsibilities 
clearly defined 

List of approved contractors 
updated in consultation with 
Hampshire County Council 

Procurement process 
procedure for new contractors 
completed in liaison with 
Hampshire County Council 
and 7 contractors appointed to 
the list. 

Private Sector Housing 
Senior Officer 

July 2022 Complete 

Review and update 
Disabled Facilities Grants 
Policy and operational 
procedures 

Update to new draft DFG 
Policy 2022-2025 complete 
and updates have taken into 
consideration advice from 
Foundations the National 
Body for Home Improvement 
Agencies in England. 

New draft policy to be 
presented to Business and 
Housing Policy Committee on 
29 November. 

Private Sector Housing 
Senior Officer DFG  

September 2022 Complete 

 

Embed updated policy into 
the operational procedures 
for managing disabled 
facility grants 

This action will be completed 
once the new draft DFG policy 
is eventually signed off 

Private Sector Housing 
Senior Officer 

Early2023 

This action will be 
completed once 

the new draft DFG 
policy is eventually 

signed off 

In progress 

 

P
age 95



  AG086 
Appendix 2 

 
 

 

 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2022/23 

30 September 2022 

Winchester City Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 96



  AG086 
Appendix 2 

 
Internal Audit Progress Report – September 2022 

 

 

Contents: 

 

 

  

1. Role of Internal Audit 3 

2. Purpose of report 4 

3. Performance dashboard  5 

4. Analysis of ‘Live’ audit reviews 6 - 7 

5. Executive summaries ‘Limited’ and ‘No’ assurance opinions 7 

6. Planning and resourcing 7 

7. Rolling work programme 7 - 9 

Annex 1 Adjustments to the plan 10 

Annex 2 Pre 2020-21 Audit Opinion Definitions 11 

P
age 97



  AG086 
Appendix 2 

 
Internal Audit Progress Report – September 2022 

 

 

1. Role of Internal Audit 

 
The requirement for an internal audit function in local government is detailed within the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, 
which states that a relevant body must: 

‘Undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, 
taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.’  

The standards for ‘proper practices’ are laid down in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards [the Standards – updated 2017]. 
 
The role of internal audit is best summarised through its definition within the Standards, as an:  

‘Independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisations’ operations.  It 
helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes’.  

Winchester City Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk management processes, control systems, 
accounting records and governance arrangements.  Internal audit plays a vital role in advising the Council that these arrangements are in 
place and operating effectively.   
 
The Council’s response to internal audit activity should lead to the strengthening of the control environment and, therefore, contribute to 
the achievement of the organisations’ objectives. 
  

P
age 98



  AG086 
Appendix 2 

 
Internal Audit Progress Report – September 2022 

 

 

2. Purpose of report 

In accordance with proper internal audit practices (Public Sector Internal Audit Standards), and the Internal Audit Charter the Chief Internal 
Auditor is required to provide a written status report to ‘Senior Management’ and ‘the Board’, summarising: 

 The status of ‘live’ internal audit reports; 

 an update on progress against the annual audit plan; 

 a summary of internal audit performance, planning and resourcing issues; and 

 a summary of significant issues that impact on the Chief Internal Auditor’s annual opinion. 

Internal audit reviews culminate in an opinion on the assurance that can be placed on the effectiveness of the framework of risk 
management, control and governance designed to support the achievement of management objectives of the service area under review.  
The assurance opinions are categorised as follows: 

Substantial A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with internal controls operating effectively and being 
consistently applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Reasonable  There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or 
scope for improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Limited Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement is required to the system of governance, 
risk management and control to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

No Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of 
governance, risk management and control is inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the 
area audited. 

* Some reports listed within this progress report (pre 2020-21 audit plan) refer to categorisations used by SIAP prior to the adoption of the CIPFA 
standard definitions, reference is provided at Annex 2.  

P
age 99



  AG086 
Appendix 2 

 
Internal Audit Progress Report – September 2022 

 

 

3. Performance dashboard  

  
 

Compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

An External Quality Assessment of the Southern Internal Audit Partnership was undertaken by the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) in 
September 2020.  The report concluded:  

‘The mandatory elements of the International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) include the Definition of Internal Auditing, Code of 
Ethics, Core Principles and International Standards. There are 64 fundamental principles to achieve with 118 points of recommended practice. 
We assess against the principles.  

It is our view that the Southern Internal Audit Partnership conforms to all 64 of these principles.   

We have also reviewed SIAP conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and Local Government Application Note 
(LGAN).  

We are pleased to report that SIAP conform with all relevant, associated elements.’ 
 

% of revised 
plan 

delivered to 
draft report 

16% 
Complete 

48%  

Yet to 
Commence 

36%  

Work in 
Progress 

84%

86%

88%

90%

92%

94%

96%

98%

100%

Target Actual

Stakeholder Satisfaction Survey Results 

P
age 100



  AG086 
Appendix 2 

 
Internal Audit Progress Report – September 2022 

 

 

4. Analysis of ‘Live’ audit reviews 

 

Audit Review 
Report 
Date 

Audit 
Sponsor 

Assurance 
Opinion 

Total 
Management 

Action(s) 

Not Yet 
Due 

Complete Overdue 

       L M H 

Working in Partnership Sep 20 SDR Limited ** 12 0 7  5  

Building Control  Sep 20 SDR Reasonable 10 2 7  1  

Health and Safety Oct 20 SDP Reasonable 17 0 16   1 

Capital Programme and Monitoring Feb 21 SDS Reasonable 4 0 3  1  

ICT Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery 
Planning  

Jul 21 SDR Reasonable 4 0 1 1 2  

Disabled Facilities Grants Dec 21 SDS Limited 16 0 15   1 

Information Governance – Records Retention Mar 22 SDR Limited 14 3 5 1 2 3 

Cyber Security * Mar 22 SDR Reasonable 9 0 9    

Human Resources – Employee Wellbeing Jun 22 SDR Reasonable 2 2 0    

IT Incident and Problem Management * Jun 22 SDR Reasonable 2 0 2    

Housing - Leaseholder Management Jun 22 SDS Reasonable 6 2 4    

Programme & Project Management Sep 22 SDR Reasonable 12 11 1    

Total 2 11 5 

 
 

 

 

 

 

* Denotes audits where all actions have been completed since the last progress report. 

** The reports listed (pre 2020-21 audit plan) refer to categorisations used by SIAP prior to the adoption of the CIPFA standard definitions, 

reference is provided at Annex 2. 

P
age 101



  AG086 
Appendix 2 

 
Internal Audit Progress Report – September 2022 

 

 

Audit Sponsor (Director)  

Strategic Director - Resources SDR 

Strategic Director - Services SDS 

Strategic Director – Place  SDP 
 
 
 

5. Executive Summaries of reports published concluding a ‘Limited’ or ‘No’ assurance opinion 

 
To date, there have been no audits which have concluded with a ‘limited’ or ‘no’ assurance opinion during 2022-23. 

6. Planning & Resourcing 

 
The internal audit plan for 2022-23 was approved by the Council’s Management Team and the Audit and Governance Committee in March 

2022.  The audit plan remains fluid to provide a responsive service that reacts to the changing needs of the Council.  Progress against the 

plan is detailed within section 7.   

7. Rolling Work Programme 

 
Audit Review Sponsor Scoping Terms of 

Reference 
Fieldwork Draft 

Report 
Final 

Report 
Assurance 

Opinion 
Comment 

Brought Forward – Included within 
2021-22 annual report and opinion 

        

Economic Development – High Streets 
Priority Plan 

SDP    May 22  n/a 
Consultancy / Position 

Statement 

Winchester Sport and Leisure Park and 
Meadowside Leisure Centre - Contract 
Management 

SDP    May 22  Reasonable  

P
age 102



  AG086 
Appendix 2 

 
Internal Audit Progress Report – September 2022 

 

 

Audit Review Sponsor Scoping Terms of 
Reference 

Fieldwork Draft 
Report 

Final 
Report 

Assurance 
Opinion 

Comment 

User Lifecycle & Access Management SDR    June 22  Reasonable  

IT Asset Management SDR    July 22  Reasonable  

         

2022-23          

Strategic / Governance Reviews         

Programme & Project Management SDR    Aug 22 Sep 22 Reasonable  

Financial Stability – Budget Monitoring SDR        

Energy Management / Climate 
Emergency / Green Agenda / Air Quality 

SDP       Q3 

Digital Strategy SDR       Q4 

Asset Management (Corporate Estate) SDP       Q3-4 

Working in Partnership / Alternative 
Delivery Models 

SDR       Q3 

Health & Safety SDP        

Procurement SDR       Q4 

Contract Management SDR       Q3-4 

Information Governance – FOI/SAR SDR        

Corporate Governance Framework & 
Complaints 

SDR    Sep 22    

Fraud Framework - NFI SDR n/a n/a     Q1-4 

Human Resources – Policies and SDR        

P
age 103



  AG086 
Appendix 2 

 
Internal Audit Progress Report – September 2022 

 

 

Audit Review Sponsor Scoping Terms of 
Reference 

Fieldwork Draft 
Report 

Final 
Report 

Assurance 
Opinion 

Comment 

Procedures 

Recruitment SDR       Q4 

Core Financial Systems         

NNDR SDR        

Housing Rents SDR       Q3 

Council Tax SDR        

Accounts Payable SDR        

Main Accounting and Reconciliations SDR       Q3 

Payroll SDR        

Information Technology         

IT Governance – Mobile Device 
Management 

SDR       Q3-4 

Cyber Security – IT Response Planning SDR        

Service / Operational Reviews         

Housing and Homelessness - Tenancy 
Support Scheme 

SDS       Q3 

Housing Asset Management – Responsive 
Repairs 

SDS        

Disabled Facilities Grants – Follow-up SDS       Q4 

Planning / Development Management SDS    Aug 22    

Open Spaces / Tree Management SDP       Q3 

P
age 104



  AG086 
Appendix 2 

 
Internal Audit Progress Report – September 2022 

 

 

Audit Review Sponsor Scoping Terms of 
Reference 

Fieldwork Draft 
Report 

Final 
Report 

Assurance 
Opinion 

Comment 

Licensing SDS       Q3-4  

Markets SDP       Q4 

Certification Audits         

Bus Service Operator Grant SDS  n/a  n/a Aug 22 n/a Grant certified 

Mayor’s Charity Account SDS  n/a  n/a Sep 22 n/a Certification audit.   

  

P
age 105



  AG086 
Appendix 2 

 
Internal Audit Progress Report – September 2022 

 

 

Annex 1 - Adjustments to the plan 

Audit reviews added to the plan (included in 
rolling work programme above) 

Comment 

None  

 

Audit reviews removed from the plan 
(excluded from rolling work programme) 

Comment 

None  

  

P
age 106



  AG086 
Appendix 2 

 
Internal Audit Progress Report – September 2022 

 

 

Annex 2 - Assurance opinions and definitions used by SIAP prior to adoption of the CIPFA standard definitions 

As from April 2020 CIPFA guidance recommends a standard set of assurance opinions and supporting definitions for internal audit service 

providers across the public sector.  

To ensure SIAP continue to conform to the best practice principles, the standard definitions were adopted for our 2020-21 work and 

moving forwards.   

There remain some residual reviews detailed within Section 4 of this report that refer to SIAPs former assurance ratings which are detail 

below. 

Substantial A sound framework of internal control is in place and operating effectively.  No risks to the achievement of system 
objectives have been identified 

Adequate Basically a sound framework of internal control with opportunities to improve controls and / or compliance with the 
control framework.  No significant risks to the achievement of system objectives have been identified 

Limited Significant weakness identified in the framework of internal control and / or compliance with the control framework which 
could place the achievement of system objectives at risk 

No Fundamental weaknesses identified in the framework of internal control or the framework is ineffective or absent with 
significant risk to the achievement of system objectives. 

 

P
age 107



  AG086 
Appendix 3 

 
 

 

Code of conduct complaints 
 

A. Code of Conduct Complaints received by office of the Monitoring Officer since 
previous meeting of Audit & Governance Committee and update of those 
previously reported - as at 30 September 2022. 
 

Date contact 

first made 

with 
Monitoring 

Officer 

Complaint against 

district or parish/town 

councillor 

Details 

 

Sept 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

October 2020  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 2021 

 

 

 

District Councillor  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Parish Councillors  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

District Councillors 

 

 

 

Complaint received 30 September 

2020 though insufficient information 

to progress and further corporate 

complaints received.  Resolved in 

2021 and code of conduct 

complaint 

investigated.  Complainant had 

been unable to attend due to 

personal circumstances for several 

months. Hearing programming 

delayed and must now be 

progressed. 

 

Complaint withdrawn and 

resubmitted 5 October 2020 – 

further, extensive complaints 

received over several months, 

further complaints 

refused.  Finalised Investigation 

report and appendices being 

reviewed by the IP.  IP and MO 

meeting early November.  Data 

Protection Officer consulted in 

respect of implications of 

publication.  Next step release to 

Parish Council and complainants 

external to the Parish Council.  

 

Draft report completed and 

recommendation received from 

Independent Person.  Draft report 

Page 108



  AG086 
Appendix 3 

 
 

 

Date contact 

first made 

with 
Monitoring 

Officer 

Complaint against 

district or parish/town 

councillor 

Details 

 

 

 

 

April 2021 

 

 

 

Nov 2021 

 

 

 

January 2022 

 

 

January 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

February 2022 

 

 

 

February 2022 

 

 

 

 

March 2022 

 

 

 

 

June 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

Parish Councillor 

 

 

 

Parish Councillor  

 

 

 

City Councillor 

 

 

Parish Councillors 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City/Parish Councillors 

 

 

 

Parish Councillors 

 

 

 

 

Parish Councillors 

 

 

 

 

Parish Councillor 

 

to be sent to complainants for 

Maxwellisation stage. 

 

 

Draft report completed.  Due 

diligence checks being undertaken 

before issue of report.   

 

Draft report completed.  Due 

diligence checks being undertaken 

before issue of report.   

 

Closed May 2022 

 

 

Reviewed by Monitoring Officer as 

care and conduct reallocated.  

Additional information requested 

from Parish Clerk. Deadline for 

reply 10/11. 

 

 

Under review by Monitoring Officer 

as care and conduct reallocated. 

 

 

Under review by Monitoring Officer 

Office as care and conduct 

reallocated meeting with Parish 

Councillors arranged for November 

 

Under review by Monitoring Officer 

Office as care and conduct 

reallocated.  Subject member 

responses now collated. 

 

Complaints with subject member for 

response. 

Page 109



  AG086 
Appendix 3 

 
 

 

Date contact 

first made 

with 
Monitoring 

Officer 

Complaint against 

district or parish/town 

councillor 

Details 

 

June 2022 

 

 

 

June 2022 

 

 

July 2022 

 

 

Sept 2022 

 

 

 

Sept 2022 

 

 

 

Sept 2022 

 

 

 

 

City Councillors 

 

 

 

Parish Councillor 

 

 

Parish Councillor 

 

 

City Councillor 

 

 

 

Parish Councillor 

 

 

 

City Councillor 

 

 

 

 

Matter resolved as issue related to 

IT technical issue.  All parties 

advised.  Case closed. 

 

Monitoring Officer has a telephone 

call booked with Parish Councillor 

 

Complaint with Subject Members 

for response 

 

Response received from subject 

member – awaiting assessment by 

MO. 

 

Subject member requested to 

speak with MO. Call booked. 

 

 

Response received from subject 

member - Under assessment by the 

MO 

 

 

   

   

 
 
B. Issues raised and discussed with the office of the Monitoring Officer since the 

previous meeting of Audit & Governance Committee - as at 30 September 
2022. 

 

 Number of issues 
raised 

Comments 

City Councillors 
 

4 issues raised by 
email or phone  

4 complaints received 

Parish/Town 
Councillors  

3 issues raised by 
email or phone  

1 complaint received to date 

 

Page 110



  AG086 
Appendix 4 

 
 

 

Corporate Risk Register 2022/23 
 
As of 14 September 2022 
 
 

Residual risk summary overview: 
 

 
 

 

 

Code Risk Description Risk Owner What might go wrong? What will happen? Original Risk 
Rating 

Current Controls Residual Risk 

CR001 Given competing 
demands and 
multiple complex 
priorities, the risk is 
that the council does 
not maintain capacity 
to deliver services  

Chief 
Executive 

 Ambitious council plan 
with multiple strands of 
activity 

 Staff resources are lean 
and teams are working 
at capacity to deliver 
services at current 
levels of demand 

 Outbreak of a pandemic 
that increases the 
pressure to continue to 
provide critical services 
as well as respond to 
the needs of residents 
and businesses 
affected by the 
pandemic 

 If decision making is 
slow, delays occur and 
potentially available 
resources are redeployed 
or become unavailable if 
they are externally 
sourced 

 Implementation of 
business continuity plan 
to target work in critical 
areas in cases of staff 
shortage 

 If staff lack political 
awareness, middle 
managers will be slow to 
redeploy resource to 
current priorities 

 

 Council Plan is distilled into 
key priorities by service. If 
capacity becomes an issue, 
prioritisation of activity is in 
place 

 Critical activities are 
currently reviewed with 
Cabinet alongside a refresh 
of the Council Plan 

 Checks in place to ensure 
proactive approach to 
communications internal 
and external 

 Flexible working 
arrangements to enable 
staff to balance home/work 
commitments 

 

P
age 111



  AG086 
Appendix 4 

 
 

 

Code Risk Description Risk Owner What might go wrong? What will happen? Original Risk 
Rating 

Current Controls Residual Risk 

 Cultural desire to ‘go 
the extra mile’ leading 
to additional strain on 
resources and potential 
errors 

 Competition from the 
private sector for key 
staff roles e.g., 
planning, project 
management 

 Officers not sensitive to 
the political reality and 
perhaps focus on ‘old’ 
priorities 

 Decision making can be 
slow, 

 Middle management too 
rule driven and need to 
be more responsive 

 Reluctance to “just do 
it” 

 Tension between day-
to-day and strategic 
priorities 

 Key skills not in the 
right place  

 If staff are diverted then 
can’t deliver on other 
lower-level priorities or 
day-to-day things 

 Reputation is damaged 
as the council is not seen 
to be able to complete 
projects 

 Local members are not 
always kept informed of 
activity in their area 

 Unable to deliver key 
council services 

 Maintaining communication 

 Annual Service Planning 

 Regular meetings with 
relevant cabinet members 

 Positive use of fixed term 
contracts to aid flexible 
resourcing 

 Targeted use of external 
resource 

 Reallocation of human and 
financial resources across 
and within the organisation 
as required 

 GOLD command review 
resources on a regular 
basis 

CR003 Decisions made by 
the council are 
challenged due to a 
lack of a strong 
evidence base, 
customer insight and 
engagement with 
change or procedural 

Interim Head 
of Legal 
Services 

 Lack of skill to identify 
evidence to support 
decision making 

 Lack of consultation 
with ward members 
and/ or parish council's 
over local issues 

 Lack of a robust and 
evidence-based approach 
to customer engagement 
can lead to: 
Reputational damage 
Views that the council is 
too Winchester-centric 

 That decisions made are 

 

 Consultation with ward and 
parish councillors (on 
matters within their ward or 
parish) 

 Risks with regard to 
significant projects are 
recognised and addressed 
separately via robust 

 

P
age 112



  AG086 
Appendix 4 

 
 

 

Code Risk Description Risk Owner What might go wrong? What will happen? Original Risk 
Rating 

Current Controls Residual Risk 

errors  Procedural error in 
statutory process 

 Inconsistent and 
traditional approach to 
customer engagement 
across the council 

 Lack of awareness of 
the questions to ask 

 Lack of awareness of 
the ‘right time’ to 
engage 

 Lack of public 
awareness of the 
opportunity to engage 

 Council is not aware of 
the full range of 
interested stakeholders 

 Council may only hear 
the loudest voices and 
not the silent majority or 
those that do not readily 
engage 

Inequitable 

 There is a perception that 
people’s views are 
ignored 

 Without a robust and 
evidence-based 
engagement process the 
council is exposed to risk 
of challenge on decisions 

 Ward members and/or 
parish council's not being 
informed 

 Legal/ judicial review or 
challenge against a 
decision made 

Project Management and 
regular reports to the 
Programme and Capital 
Strategy Board 

 Legal and Monitoring 
Officer consultation on 
decisions made 

 Residents’ survey 
completed 2022 

 A we asked … you said … 
we did feedback approach 

 A council wide data capture 
exercise completed 

 Comms approach reset to 
simplify language and 
remove jargon 

 Move to proactive 
openness and transparency 

 A more inclusive approach 
to engagement that also 
considers the restrictions in 
place due to the pandemic 

CR004 Failure to have plans 
and processes in 
place to recover and 
maintain services 
after a major incident 
(including pandemic) 
that has a significant 
impact on the ability 
of the Council to 
provide its services 

Chief 
Executive 

 Not maintaining an 
effective corporate wide 
Business Continuity 
Plan  

 Not regularly testing of 
plan and follow-up  

 Key staff unavailable  

 Communication 
systems ineffective  

 Lack of awareness  

 Failure to assess 

 Unacceptable delay and 
uncertainty in returning to 
normal working after an 
emergency  

 Adverse publicity and 
criticism  

 Reputation damage  

 Adverse social impact   

 

 Business Continuity Plans 
reviewed and tested in 
2022 

 Annual testing of IT 
Disaster Recovery Plan 

 Critical services identified 
with individual business 
continuity plans 

 Back up temporary office 
accommodation at Hyde 
Lodge 

 

P
age 113



  AG086 
Appendix 4 

 
 

 

Code Risk Description Risk Owner What might go wrong? What will happen? Original Risk 
Rating 

Current Controls Residual Risk 

business critical 
functions and have 
plans in place   

 All staff able to seamlessly 
work from home, where job 
allows 

 Recent (2020) internal audit 
resulting in substantial 
opinion and no identified 
weaknesses 

CR006 Effective partnership 
working  

Strategic 
Director DA 

 Partnerships can falter 
due to lack of shared 
vision within 
partnerships 

 Strategic partnerships 
may falter due to 
conflicting demands 
within individual 
partners 

 Failure within 
procurement process 

 Partnerships may be 
unsuccessfully 
commissioned due to 
lack of procurement 
skills and poor scoping 

 Significant local, 
regional or national 
partners may close 
down, affecting council 

 Significant project 
delivery such as the 
major projects and the 
new home building 
programme may fail due 
to failure of strategic 
partnerships 

 Local delivery may fail if 
local strategic partners 
are not aligned 

 Reputational damage to 
all partners 

 

 Annual review of all 
partnerships undertaken to 
identify key strategic 
partners  

 Introduction of annual 
performance reporting for 
significant partnerships  

 

CR007 Lack of sufficient 
funding and/or 
escalating costs over 
the medium term 
reducing financial 
viability and inability 

Strategic 
Director and 
S151 Officer 
RB 

 Reduced Government 
funding  

 Reliance on strategic 
partners to deliver 
services and projects  

 Macro economy, 

 Unable to balance the 
budget 

 Increased Council Tax 

 Public’s ability to pay for 
services 

 Reduce services provided 
 

 Strategic Budget review 
mid-year 22/23 

 One year funding 
settlement in place 

 MTFS approach setting out 
medium and longer term 

 

P
age 114



  AG086 
Appendix 4 

 
 

 

Code Risk Description Risk Owner What might go wrong? What will happen? Original Risk 
Rating 

Current Controls Residual Risk 

to achieve a 
balanced budget  

including effects of 
Brexit, reduces locally 
generated Business 
Rates and parking 
income  

 Failure to achieve 
income targets  

 Inflation rises  

 Penalties are imposed 
on the Council due to 
falling standards in 
services  

 Demand/cost of services 

 Increased construction 
costs and impact on 
delivery and viability of 
key projects 

 Over borrowing and 
avoidable cost 

options 

 Quarterly finance reporting 
and monitoring of key 
income sources 

 Regular policy review and 
monitoring 

 Scenario planning and 
sensitivity analysis of key 
risks 

 Transformation programme 
to set out cost review 

 Maintain General fund 
reserve of at least £2m 

 Regular review of reserves 

 Annual review of fees and 
charges 

CR008 Availability of suitable 
sites to meet the 
strategic need for 
building new homes 

Strategic 
Director and 
S151 Officer 
RB 

 Increasing demand for 
new houses 

 High cost of housing, 
including private rented 
sector 

 Unable to identify new 
sites for new houses 

 Increasing infrastructure 
demands on new sites 

 Higher build costs 

 Increasing inflation and 
interest rates affecting 
supply 

 Increased housing 
waiting list numbers 

 Increasing homelessness 

 Difficulty accessing 
housing markets 

 Outward migration of 
younger residents 

 Adverse publicity 

 Government intervention 

 

 Plans in place to deliver 
significant new homes 

 Regular monitoring of 
projects 

 Revised Housing Strategy 

 Cost benchmarking 
 

P
age 115



  AG086 
Appendix 4 

 
 

 

Code Risk Description Risk Owner What might go wrong? What will happen? Original Risk 
Rating 

Current Controls Residual Risk 

CR009 Failure in cyber 
security leaving the 
council exposed to 
phishing and other 
attacks leading to 
compromised IT 
systems and data 
loss 

Corporate 
Head of 
Finance 

 Malicious attack by 
Hackers for financial 
gain 

 Malicious attack by 
Hackers to disrupt 
business and ability to 
deliver services 

 Viral code attack in 
order to data mine 
information and 
identities 

 Possible complete 
shutdown of Council IT 
Systems and 
Infrastructure 

 Business\service delivery 
disruption 

 Significant Financial loss 

 Credibility and confidence 
lost in engaging with 
digital services and e-
payments 

 

 Mandatory Cyber Security 
awareness training held for 
all staff 

 IT Systems and processes 
administered to PSN 
(Public Services Network) 
standards and protocols 

 ITILv3 Methodology 
adoption for ITSM 

 Comprehensive and regular 
reviews of ISP (Information 
Security Policies) and IT 
Network Access Policies 

 Operational daily checks 
and proactive monitoring of 
Firewalls and pattern 
updates 

 Staff qualified in Cyber 
Scheme Professional 
standards and within GOV 
UK CESG guidelines 

 Regular system health 
checks and vulnerability 
scans 

 System and software 
maintained to supported 
levels. 

 Email security managed by 
accredited 3rd party 

 Insurance for potential 
losses for a cyber-attack 

 

P
age 116



  AG086 
Appendix 4 

 
 

 

Code Risk Description Risk Owner What might go wrong? What will happen? Original Risk 
Rating 

Current Controls Residual Risk 

CR010 Responding to 
Climate Change 
Emergency and 
reducing the council 
and district carbon 
emissions  

Strategic 
Director DA 

 Failure to take steps to 
achieve target for the 
council to be carbon 
neutral by 2024 

 Resistance to 
behavioural change to 
reduce energy use 

 Not take advantage of 
new technologies to 
reduce energy usage 

 Funding not made 
available 

 Insufficient project 
capacity in house 

 Failure to meet agreed 
targets 

 Adverse publicity 

 Reputational damage 

 Increased risk of flooding 

 Increased risk of droughts 

 Reduction in house prices 

 Carbon emissions 
increase 

 Protests by lobby groups 

 House price volatility e.g., 
increases in value for 
houses in areas less 
likely to flood 

 

 Winchester Carbon 
Neutrality Action Plan 
approved 

 Cross council officer group 
established 

 Partner group established 

 Climate Emergency 
declared 

 Asset Management 
Strategy 

 Annual report for first 2 
years 

 £15mil HRA 

 

CR011 Lack of preparedness 
and incapability to 
respond to events 
caused by climate 
change 

Strategic 
Director DA 

 Failure to prepare for an 
adverse weather event, 
for example long period 
of rain, heavy snow or 
heatwave  

 Failure to manage 
sluice gates and 
maintain rivers  

 Failure to respond to an 
adverse weather event, 
e.g., making safe city 
footpaths and car parks 
after heavy snow fall   

 Flooding causing damage 
to property and assets  

 Loss of income to the 
council e.g., closed car 
parks due to snow  

 Adverse publicity  

 Damage to reputation   

 

 Multiagency Emergency 
Response Plan in place, 
reviewed and updated 
annually  

 Annual Emergency 
Planning exercise to test 
the Plan  

 Completion of flood 
alleviation schemes  

 Temporary flood defence 
barrier purchased and 
available to be used where 
there is a need   

 

 
  

P
age 117



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  
 

AG093 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

 

REPORT TITLE: MONITORING OFFICER’S ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 
 
10 NOVEMBER 2022 

Contact Officer:  Lisa Kirkman    Tel No: 01962 848 501 
Email:LKirkman@winchester.gov.uk  

WARD(S):  ALL 
 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

This is the second annual report of the Monitoring Officer and its purpose is to 
update members of the Audit and Governance Committee and provide an overview 
of the work of the office of the monitoring officer.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That the Audit and Governance Committee notes the Monitoring Officer’s 

Annual Report 2021/22. 

Page 119

Agenda Item 12



  AG093 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME 

1.1 This report demonstrates a commitment to being an open and transparent 
council.   

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 None relating to this report. 

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no procurement implications and relevant legislation is covered in 
the body of the report, by its nature. 

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 The office of the Monitoring Officer is made up the monitoring officer, a deputy 
monitoring officer and support from democratic services.   

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no property or asset implications.  

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 A successful Monitoring Officer is one who has good working relationships 
with relevant senior politicians and senior officers.  The current Monitoring 
Officer has forged those relationships in particular with group leaders, group 
managers, the chair of this committee, the head of paid service and section 
151 officer and the deputy 151 officer where it is known the section 151 is 
retiring. 

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 There are none relating to this report. 

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT 

8.1 None arising from the content of the report, although officers will have regard 
to the considerations as set out in the Equalities Act 2010 and whether an 
equality impact assessment will be required to be undertaken on any specific 
recommendations or future decisions made. This report is not making any 
decisions and is for noting and raising issues only. 

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 None required for this report which does not name individuals or process 
personal data.  

Page 120



  AG093 
 

 

 

 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT 

10.1 Risks in respect of the office of the Monitoring Officer relate to legal challenge 
and reputation.  Each individual complaint is not risk assessed in the 
traditional sense but the office are usually dealing with individuals who, at the 
point in time they have made contact with us, are emotional whether that be 
deeply upset or incredibly angry and all the emotions in between. Care must 
be taken to deal with these matters sensitively without showing bias or pre-
determination in any matter. 

11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

The Role of the Monitoring Officer 

11.1 The role of the Monitoring Officer derives from the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989. The Act requires local authorities to appoint a Monitoring 
Officer and this is a function of Full Council. The Monitoring Officer has a 
broad role in ensuring the lawfulness and fairness of Council decision making, 
ensuring compliance with Codes and Protocols and promoting good 
governance and high ethical standards.  This report covers the period April 
2021 to March 2022.  The Monitoring Officer does not have to have formal 
legal training but have access to legal advice if not so qualified.  The current 
Monitoring Officer is a solicitor. 

A Summary of the Monitoring Officer’s Functions is as follows:  
 

Description Source 

Report on contraventions or likely 
contraventions of any enactment or rule 
of law  

Local Government and Housing Act 
1989 

Report on any maladministration or 
injustice where the Ombudsman has 
carried out an investigation  

Local Government and Housing Act 
1989 

Appoint a Deputy Local Government and Housing Act 
1989 
 

Establish and maintain the Register of 
Members’ interests 

The Localism Act 2011 
(Commencement No. 6 and 
Transitional, Savings and Transitory 
Provisions) Order 2012  
 
The Localism Act 2011  
 
The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 

Report on sufficiency of resources Local Government and Housing Act 
1989 

Page 121



  AG093 
 

 

 

Description Source 

 

Maintain the Constitution The Constitution 

Promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct 

The Localism Act 2011 

Grant Dispensations The Localism Act 2011 and delegation 
from Council 

Consulting with, supporting and 
advising the Head of Paid Service and 
s.151 Officer on issues of lawfulness 
and probity 

The Constitution 

Appointing an Investigating Officer in 
relation to Member Complaints 

The Localism Act 2011 and the 
Constitution 

Advising the Audit and Governance 
Standards Sub Committee in relation to 
allegations of breaches of the Code of 
Conduct and advising when matters are 
determined following an investigation 

The Localism Act 2011 

Advise on whether executive decisions 
are within the Budget & Policy 
Framework 

The Constitution 

Provide advice on vires issues, 
maladministration, financial impropriety, 
probity, Budget and Policy Framework 
issues to all members 

The Constitution and s.5 of Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 

Legal Advice and Support to the 
authority alongside legal services 

The Constitution 

Considering whether certain Information 
is exempt from disclosure under the 
Freedom of Information Act 

Freedom of Information Act 2000 

 
The Constitution  

11.2 The Constitution sets out how the council operates and how decisions are 
made. It sets out the procedures which are followed to ensure that decisions 
are efficient, transparent and that those who make the decisions are 
accountable for them. The Monitoring Officer is responsible for ensuring that 
the Constitution operates efficiently, is properly maintained and followed. 

11.3 Prior to the current Monitoring Officers appointment, the Council had made a 
commitment to undertake a fundamental review of the Constitution.  A cross 
party Member Working Group undertook this work supported by the officer 
team. This work took over 2 years, beginning in 2017 and was completed, 
with the adoption of a new Constitution, at an extraordinary meeting of Full 
Council, in March 2019. 

11.4 The new constitution has worked well in practice but there was always the 
intention to undertake a light touch review of its effectiveness – particularly the 
introduction of 2 Policy committees into the Overview and Scrutiny function.  

Page 122



  AG093 
 

 

 

This work started in the autumn of 2019 but was paused during the COVID-19 
pandemic.  It is in the programme of works to be completed this winter.   This 
work will also incorporate a review of the current code of conduct and where 
the model code issued by the LGA may offer some improvements. 

Statutory Monitoring Officer Reports  

11.5 There were no occasions where the Monitoring Officer had reason to believe 
that there was a likelihood that the Council was about to take a decision that 
would be unlawful or give rise to maladministration. Consequently, no reports 
have been issued to the council under Section 5(2) of the Local Government 
and Housing Act (1989). 
 
Complaints 

11.6 Since the appointment of the current Monitoring Officer the quantum of 
complaints made to the Monitoring Officer have been reported to this 
committee as part of their quarterly governance report.  Since February 2021 
the office of the Monitoring Officer has also reported the number of enquiries 
they have received, as this has, certainly in 20/21, taken up the majority of 
time and resource, rather than the actual processing of complaints.  It is often 
this early intervention and assistance that prevents a matter from escalating.  
This has not been so prominent in 21/22 as it was in 20/21. 

11.7 A summary of complaints made in the year 21/22 is reported below; 

11.8 District Councillors 

 No complaints are currently under investigation 

 No complaints are on hold 

Parish Councillors 

 14 complaints by 6 individuals are currently being assessed by the 
Monitoring Officer and Independent Person. 

 No complaints are on hold. 

There are 3 outstanding complaints from last years 20/21 annual report.   

1. A complaint against City Councillors is in its final stages and going through 
the Maxwellisation stage of the process whereby the complainants have the 
opportunity to identify any matter in the draft report which they disagree with 
or requires more consideration (5.3 of members’ complaints procedure).  This 
is planning related.   

2. A complaint against a City Councillor and is due to be heard by a Standards 
Sub Committee. This relates to a planning matter. 

Page 123



  AG093 
 

 

 

3. A significant matter of 12 complaints against the same Parish.  The 
investigation has been concluded by the external investigator and this is 
currently with the Independent person – the report and appendices are 
significant with over 500 pages and many audio attachments.  The Monitoring 
Officer is meeting with the Independent Person imminently and this matter will 
be reported back to the Audit and Governance committee by the Monitoring 
Officer in any event due to its significance. 

 
Gifts and hospitality declarations 

11.9 There have been only two declarations made this year by a councillor – this is 
more than the previous year which was put down to the effects of the COVID-
19 pandemic.  

11.10 There have been 4 officer declarations made this year.  The officer threshold 
is much lower at a £5 limit.   

11.11 Both officer and member declarations are regularly reported in the quarterly 
governance monitoring report that comes to this committee. Reminders of the 
requirements of these declarations go in both member communication in the 
DSU and for Officers through City Voice.  

Monitoring Officer Observations 

11.12 Last year there was a noticeable increase in issues around the comments 
from councillors that have been picked up on the audio of virtual meetings that 
perhaps were not previously picked up where perhaps members of the public 
were sat some distance away from the councillors.  This has not been the 
case this year but the continuing use of audio recording of meetings has 
assisted greatly with cases this year where the Monitoring Officer and 
Independent Person can listen to the meeting.  This has particularly assisted 
with one case where 2 different transcripts were presented as evidence of the 
same meeting. 

11.13 The Monitoring Officer would observe the continuing trend of Clerks in the 
Parishes having a difficult year dealing with some difficult behaviours and this 
is likely to represent our biggest workload that does not lead to a complaint 
being made formally.  This will be discussed with the incoming Monitoring 
Officer about how the City Council may be able to assist the Parishes further, 
acknowledging there are limited resources available, but this may ultimately 
reduce the caseload. 

 
11.14 Whilst planning decisions make up a large percentage of the corporate 

complaint process, these have continued to spill into Code of Conduct 
complaints but this is a trend seen by most councils with responsibility for the 
LPA.  No issues have been raised by the officer team to this committee – 
whether the lead officer or legal advisors to the committee. 

11.15 Previous training for members of the Code of Conduct had mixed all 
councillors together whether experienced or brand new.  The Monitoring 

Page 124



  AG093 
 

 

 

Officer in 20/21 held a targeted training session for new members and this 
was the same for May 2022 intake of new Councillors.   

On-going work for 22/23 

11.16 Whilst not relevant to the annual report of the Monitoring Officer which 
focuses on the year 21/22 it is helpful for members to understand the ongoing 
work being undertaken currently.  Priority is with clearing the caseload as 
there have been delays this year with the departure of the Deputy Monitoring 
Officer who left in June.  Good progress has been made in the last 6/8 weeks 
and additional resource was sourced in August to assist and is proving 
effective.   

11.17 The light touch Constitution review, as mentioned above, is also outstanding.  
This work is being undertaken by the current Monitoring Officer before she 
leaves at the end of January 2023.  The new Monitoring Officer is due to start 
with the Council in January 2023.  An important handover conversation will be 
around member training on the code of conduct. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

Not updating this committee or reporting on these matters was not an option 
for the Monitoring Officer. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

AG052 June 2021. 

Other Background Documents:- 

None. 

APPENDICES: 

None. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 To note the Audit & Governance work programme 2022/23
	5 Minutes of the previous meetings held on 29 June and 21 July 2022
	Minutes , 21/07/2022 Audit and Governance Committee

	7 Treasury management mid-year monitoring 22/23 (AG094)
	8 Final report and pay policy statement 23/24 (AG092)
	9 Update on employee attitude survey and related matters (AG085)
	10 Risk Management Strategy - Review (AG087)
	11 Quarter 1 and Quarter 2 Governance Monitoring (AG086)
	12 Monitoring Officer’s annual report 2021/22 (AG093)

